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GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

Covering Letter 

The Registrar 
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 

Subject: Application for Grant of ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY LICENSE 

1. Mujtaba Haider Khan, CEO, being the duly authorized representative of Grid Edge 
Limited by virtue of Board Resolution dated 19th  .Junc 2023, hereby apply to the National 
Electric Power Regulatory Authority for the grant of a Electric Power Supply License to the 
NEPRA pursuant to section 47 of the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution 
of Electric Power Act, 1997. I hereby certify that the documents-in-support attached with this 
application are prepared and submitted in conformity with the provisions of the National 
Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing (Application, Modi Lcation. Exte s on 
Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021, and undertake to abide by the terms and proi. 
of the above-said regulations. I further undertake and confirm that the inforniution prtHdJ 
the attached docLniients-in-support is true and correct to the best of' my knowledc and no 
material omission has been made. Refer to the "Compiler Checklist "as a i'efircnce for 
submitted documents. 

Date: 91h  June 2023 
Name, Designation: Mujtaba 1-laider Khan, CEO 

Dawood Centre, MT. Khan Road, Karachi-75950, Pakistan 

Telephone No.: 021-35632200 Fax No.: 021-35633970 



I 
CHECK LIST FOR EXAMINATION OF LICENCE A11'LlcATIoN 

FOR ELECTRIC Pow IR Su PILY  
(Regulation 3 read with 3(4)(a) oFAMECl'R-202 1)  

Name of Company: Grid Edcxe Limited 

Regulation # I nforni atio n/Docu ni cuts Required In 10 rm a tie ill 
Documents 
Su bin itted 

Application fee (including Indexation) 

3(3) * Application submitted in triplicate 

3(4)(a) applicable documents-in-support and information set out in Schedule III of 

these regulations; 

3(4)(b) * 0 prOspectus Prospectus 

3(4)(c)(i)(a) * ceitilied copies olcertificate of incorporation Ccrtificte 

In CO r p0 i'at 1(11 

3(4)(c)(i)(b) * CCItI lied copies of meinorand LIJU and articics of associat on - meniora 11(1 liii 

and articles o 

11SSUC I ii 

3(4)(c)(i)(c) * certified copies of annual reports of the company Annual 

Retuni-2022 

3(4)(c)(ii) * the last annual return of the Company submitted in compliance of section 130 

of the Companies Act or, in case of an applicant to whom section 130 of the 

Companies Act does not apply, a return comprising of all such information and 

particulars as required by tile specified form under section 130 of the 

Companies Act, as the case may be; 

Form A 

['flI'm 29 

3(4)(c)(iii) tile authorised. issued, suhscribd and paid up silare capital oftlie applicant 

3(4)(c)(iv) tile shareholding pattern of the applicant including list ol shareholders holding 

5% or more shares, number oh' shares held by each o i them and perceninne 

shares of the total paid-up capital 

3(4)(d)(i) evidence of cash balances held in reserve by tile applicant, along with bank I 
certificates; 

3(4)(d)(ii) details of charges or encumbrances attached to the applicant's assets. folly; 

3(4)(d)(i ii) latest audited financial statements of the applicant; 

3(4)(d)(iv) expressions of interest to provide ci'edit ot' financing along with sources and 

details thereof 

3(4)(d)(v) documents describing tile net worth atid the equity and debt ratios of tile 

applicant, as on tile date of the audited balance sheet accompanying tile 

applion; 

3(4)(dxvi) 
* a reasonably detailed profile of the applicant and tile applicant's Seniol' 

management, technical and professional staff; 

Profile of' 

CXCI'ICI1CC Of 

AppIint 

3(4)(d)(vi i) Clii ployneni records oh engineering and tcliii cal sta it' oh I he appi cant 

proposed to he employed; 
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I 
Regii In tion # ii to rin a Ui on/l)ocu in cii ts Req ui red In lb rift at in ii! 

Doc urn en ts 
Submitted 

3(4)(d)(vii) profile of sub-contractors, if any, along with expressions of interest of such 

sub-contractors; 

3(4)(d)(ix) verifiable references in respect of the experience of the applicant and its 

proposed sub-contractors; 

3(e) * technical and ii nancial proposals in reasonable delat tor (lie Operation. 

maintenance, planning and development of the ftic lit or s ste.m in respect of 

which the license is being sought; 

--- 
ccliii ica I & 

u cia 

I roposal 

3(f) * Feasibility Study Feasibility 

Stud 

3(g) * an affidavit stating whether the applicant has been granted any other license 

under the Act; 

Affidavit 

30) * 
a duly aulliorised statement stating whether the applicant has been refused grant 

of license under the Act and, if SO, the particulars of the refused application, 

including date of making the application and decision on the application: 

Authorized 

Statement 

3(6) * Authorization from Board Resolution / Power of Attorney Authorization 

from Uuaril 

Resolution 

3(7) * An alhdavil as to the correctness, authenticity, and accuracy a I' the 

application, 

.- I'll l:iv ii- 

,-. 

Schedule III (Regulation 3(4)(a)(I)) 

I Relevant feeder maps Number olconsumers and expected load 

2.* Consumer class/category, sub-category on the basis of sanctioned load and 

voltage level 

3. Tariff categories of consumer classes to be served 

Demand and consumption pattern on different time periods 

5•* Procui'ement Plan for meeting expected loads (including own generation and/or 

long-term and short-term PPAs. as the case may he) 

12-month projections on expected load, number of consumers and expected 

sale of units for each consumer category 

7.  5-year Investment Plan indicating schemcs,!lnodels/frame\.vork  'or under akinc 

supply ol' electric power (including frameworks for providing non- 

discriminatory services and acquisition/sale of assets in relevant service 

territories) 

8.  Training and development procedures and manuals 

9.  Consumer Service Manual Schid ule I I I 

10.  Information relating to: 

* Proposed service territory 

* Billing and collection procedures (including provisions for remote 

metering) 

* Ability to access consumer metering systems and other 

services/equipment 

- "1 
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Regulation # Information/Docunients Required Inform a tb ii! 
Documents 
Subnb itled 

Emergency provisions and protocols 

Basis.ofcommon.servicesfor commercjal.andresi.dentjalconsujers 

and their allocation thereof 
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PROSPECTUS 

A brief introduction of the applicant 

Grid Edge Limited 

The applicant Grid Edge Private Limited is power purchase agreement arm of Reon Energy 

Limited. 

The electricity market is changing fast. Technology advancements, evolving consumer 

preferences, and new policies are leading to a surge of adoption of solar, energy storage, 

microgrids, electric vehicles, and other new energy technologies, These distributed energy 

resources are forcing new models to rethink how the energy market works, consequently, new 

models for customer energy management, grid infrastructure and electricity market design are 

arising to address these changes. 

The Company, has been incorporated to bring innovation in the energy market by providing 

power purchase agreements via renewable technologies to private sector and public-sector 

customers in Pakistan by setting up Solar PV plants on the site of the customer by offering 

hybrid or grid tied solutions. 

This allows savings on transmission infrastructures to the government of Pakistan and allows 

customers to take advantage of cheaper renewable power without having to undertake 

expensive capex on its own accord as asking clients to undertake expensive capex on 

technology, which has capacity risk, has inhibited the growth of this industry in Pakistan even 

with all the great effort of NEPRA and Ministry of Water and Power to unlock the vaiL 

in Pakistan. 



Project Location: 

The Solar Plant will be located within the Crescent Textile lactory iii Fa 

Salient Features 

Project Rationale: 

- On site affordable energy production from solar plant to partially meet energy needs 

- Sustainable energy source in line with triple bottom line impact for client 

- Capex free deployment under power purchase agreement for 15 years 

- Reliance on localized energy sources and hedge for the term of the contract for 15 

years 

Technology: 

- Solar based Power Generation System, civil structures, and auxiliaries. 

- Complete Solar Based Power Generating Panels with their protection, 

instrumentation, monitoring, control and synchronizing panels with existing power 

sources 

All technical parameters covered including but limited to Net Efficiency, Net Output, 

Power Plant Availability, Construction of Power Plant Building including all facilities as 

well as all related sub-systems such as: 

o Plant Ventilation and air-conditioning in office and similar areas; 

o Electrification and lighting systems 

o Emergency Lighting System, etc. 

o Fire Protection System 

- The installed system shall meet applicable codes and standards. Safety signage and 

labelling should be mounted on the system as required 

- All Solar Panels shall be made of Crystalline Silicon solar cells 

- All the electrical installations and wiring for the PV system in accordance with codes 

and standards 
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Feasibility & Financing: 

The Project will cost approximately cost PKR 240 Million funded through 25% equity and 75% 

debt through SBP Green Financing 

Environmental Benefits: 

This system will help curtailing CO2 emissions by 2,500 

tonnes a year. A life cycle assessment of the CO2 

produced by solar PV is 40g per kWh as opposed to 
700g CO2  per kwh for diesel fuel/grid sources. 
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSiON OF PAKISTAN 

COMPANY REGISTRATION OFFICE, KARACHI 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

{Under section 16 of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of2017)] 

Corporate Universal Identification No. 0122474  

I hereby certify that CR11) EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED  i thi d 

incorporated under the Companies Act. 2017 (XIX of 2017) and that the comianv 

is limited by shares.  

I 

Given under my hand Eighth  day of August, Tw., 

Thousand  and Eighteen  

; Incorprna ' OO/onty 
/ 

1 / 
/ 

I 
1 

(.Kasif l\'Eahmood) 
i\clditional Joiiir Fcaisuar 

,-n. 

11 
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017(XIX of 2017) 

(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES) 

MEMORANDUM 

OF 

ASSOCIATION 

OF 

GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

1. The name of the Company is Grid Edge (Private) Limited. 

2. The registered office of the Company will be situated in the Province of Sindh. 

3. (I) The principal line of business of the Company shall be to generate, accumulate, transmit, 
distribute, purchase, sell and supply electric power or any other energy and power 
generated by any source, from conventional or non-conventional energy by bio-mass, 
hydro, thermal, gas, air, diesel oil, or solar, hydrocarbon fuel or any other form, kind or 
description or through renewable energy sources, wind mill oraq.g.iher.means/  source on 
a commercial basis and to construct lay down estabIisf\irhpe}ate  .and minf'rr 
power/energy generating stations, including buildinqs,tttures, wks;'rnachineries, 
equipments cables wires lines accumulators lamps,nd works nd to undrtak or 
carry on the business of m nging owning controlling erecting on r1i' 
operating running leabing or tran,Ierringpower plant nd p(arrts based en cni r' 
or non-conventiondl energy ',otrrce lhermalpowerplants solar eney plant- 
enorgyplants mechanical electrical hydcl civil engrnenng works boiler eotie .fr ii 

turbines, switch yards, transformer yards, sub stations,rai,mission linesurnulators, 
workshopsand to do all such other things and acts as mayappr to b incidcntai o 
conducive to the attainment of the above objects and to havfuIl;pówer In exercise cii 
powers to achieve or to endeavour to achieve the above objects. 

(ii) Except for the businesses mentioned in sub-clause (iii) hereunder, the company may 
engage in all the lawful businesses and shall be authorized to take all necessary steps to 
do all such other things and acts in connection therewith and ancillary thereto as may 
appear to be incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above objects. 

(iii) Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing sub-clauses of this clause nothing 
contained herein shall be construed as empowering the Company to undertake or indulge, 
directly or indirectly in the business of a Banking Company, Non-banking Finance 
Company (Mutual Fund, Leasing, Investment Company, Investment Advisor, Real Estate 
Investment Trust management company, Housing Finance Company, Venture Capital 
Company. Discounting Services, Microfinance or Microcredit husines 
Business, Moclaraba manaqerneol company, Stock Brokerape hiisioess. 

Prge 1 o 4 



business, managing agency, business of provithng the services of security guards or any 
other business restricted under any law for the time being in force or as may be specified 
by the Commission. 

(iv) It is hereby undertaken that the company shall not: 

(a) engage in any of the business mentioned in sub-clause (iii) above or any unlawful 
operation; 

(b) launch multi-level marketing (MLM), Pyramid and Ponzi Schemes, commodity, 
future contract or share trading business locally or internationally or other related 
activitieslbusinesses or any lottery business as restricted under the law or any 
unlawful operation; 

(c) engage in any of the permissible business unless the requisite approval, 
permission, consent or licence is obtained from competent authority as nay be 
required under any law for the time beuig in lorce. 

4. The liability of the members is limited. 

5. The authorized capital of the company is Rs 1,200,000 (Rupees One Million and Two Hundred 
Thousand only) divided into 120,000 (One Hundred and Twenty thousand) ordinary shares of Rs. 
10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. The Company shall have powers to increase, reduce or reorqanize 
the capital of the Company or increase or reduce the nominal value of the shares and divide aharos 
in the capital for the time being into several classes to the extent permissible by law in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 7or ally statutory modifications thereof 

Page 2 of 4 
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We, the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous of being 
formed into a company, in pursuance of [his memorandum of association, and we respectively agree to 
take the number of shares in the capital of the Company as set opposite our respective names: 

Name and 
surname 
(present & 
former) in full 
(in Block 
Letters) 

NIC No,n 
case of 
foreigner, 
Passport 
No) 

Fathers! 
Husband's 
Name in 
full 

Nationaliiy 
(ies) with 
any former 
Nationality 

Occupation Usual 
residential 
address in full 
or the 
registered! 
principal office 
address for a 
subscriber 
other than 
natural person 

NLm ber of 
Shares 
taken by 
each 
subscriber 
(in fiqures 
and words) 

Sigr)tures 

ENl 33264964 Subscriber Netherlands Strawinskyiaan 48,000(Forty 
International :::: 1725, 1077 XX Eight 
B.V Amsterdam, 

the 
Thousand 
Shares Only) 

Through Netherlands. 
Nommee '- 

AJ > 
Kamran 42101- Mian";R IEi1 Services House no 9-B, 
Ajmal Mian 3402641-3 1 East Street, 

Phase 1 DHA 
Clifton Cantt 
I<arachi South 

Mujtaba 42201- Ansar Pakistan Services Bhayani 1 (One Share 
Haider Khan 0492212-1 Haider 

Khan 
Sunview, 
Guishan-e-
lqbal, HO1JSe 

Only) 

00124 Block 
-11,Karachi 

Central 
Pakistan 

loam ur 35201- Fazal Paksitan Services House no 1 (One Share 
Rahman 1378474-9 Rahmaan 3/300, Sarwar Only) 

Road, Lahore 
Cantt 

LU r(' - 
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Reon 
Energy 
Limited 

Thorugh 
Nominee 

Mujtaba 
Haider Khan 

Subscriber 

Ansar 
Haider 
Khan 

Pakistan 

Pakistan 

Dawood 
Centre, M,T. 
Khan Road, 
Karachi 

Bhayani 
Sunview, 
Gulshan-e-
Iqbal, House 
rio 124 Block 
11, Karachi 
Central 
Pakistan 

71,998 
(Seventy One 
lhoLlsanl 
Nine Hundred 
and Ninety 
Eight Shares 
Only 

0089881 

Services 

Total number of shares taken (in figures and words) 

Dated the 7th day of August, 2018. 

120,000 (One 
Hundred and 
Twenty 
Thousand 
Shares 

42201- 
0492212-1 
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TIlE COMPtNII;S .C'F. 2017 (XIX of 2017) 

(( 'i)iitliitflV I iini ted by Shares) 

AR'I'ICLES OF ASSOCIA1'ION 

OF 

CR11) El)C E (IRlVATE) LIMITED 

i i I.: l \l i N;¼ R V 

I. (I) The Regulations in 'TitHe A iii the tint SciidtiIe In the (inipanic.c Act 20 7. shalt iti 
Company except in so fir as they are repeate I or contained in these Articles. 

(2) Inthcse Articles- 

"RE( 's1'' means Reon Energy Limited, a company incorporate i aol existing unik'r 
laws of Pa kistati. being the holder ol'60% sharehokling tithe Cmi ijiaris': 

means I I International B\/, a company incorporated and existing t.indc;' the 
laws olthc Netherlands, being the holder of 40% sharehoiding in the Company; 

"SeCt ion'' lealts'set,'tiofl ti the Act: 

"TI te Act'' mneans the ( 'ompa ties Act. 20 I 7: and 

"the Company'' means ( rid I dgc (Private) Limited; 

"the sea I" means the conma ii sea I or 0 t'flcial seal of the C nipativ as the case my 

"these Articles' ineutis thcc .A.ilicles ol,\ssociatinrt as origitiall', 'tamed ,ras ion' too 
to IjinC altered liv Special c';tiltttiuIt. 

(3) Unless the context otherwise t'eqtni'cs. words or expressions contained in these Articles shall love 
the same meaning as in the Act; and words importing the singular shall include the plural. tm! 1k' V'OO. 
and words i mpoi Ii ng I hc m ise tilt tic ge ticct sit tIlt oct ode I cmt nine and svot ds tot poiling persons sIt i tin Ii tiI 
bodies corporate. 

RIG ls ft RH) 0! HCI 

The rcgistctcd oIl icc 01 thi CompbIy tI1 Jis situ ited in thc. Province of Stndh 

('I, 

w 

LRISJNESS 

<' nç.,j;•\'.-_.' 
3. The directors shall have regard (o.'tlj1i, h4ctinnsnn the commencement of business utiposed by sect it 
iI nd so iitr as. those restrictions tire binditto tijicit ti. (.'ctnpativ. -. - . . 

4. In ease ol' shares in the. physical ltrtii. evc'iv pet'soli whose tame is entered to. a menibcr iii the r:ioer o: 
members shall. without payment, been titled to cccii c.ts'illtitt thirty days after ailotnietit or ii'ilhitt litteeti (t.t s 
application for registration of trQrtsftr, a cciii licate tinde the seal specifying the share or shares held by loot and the 
amount paid up there on. Provided that it'thc si ii 'es :u'e itt book entry form or in case of' convel'sion ii pltysicu 

shares and other transfirable securities into book entry lit m, the Company shall, with in ten days a tici tn 

application is made for the registration of the Iransftr ofany shares or other Securities to a central d 
register such ti-ansliir in the name of the central depository. 

- 
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5. The Company shell not be bound to issue more than one certil'icaic in respect of a sIiate or shares in the 
physical form, held jointly by several persons and delivery oia certificate for a share to one of several joint holders 

shall be sufficient delivety to all. 

6. If a sharc cciii ticate in physical form is dcfhced. lost or decrrr yed. it may be renewed on payment of such 
fee, if any, not exceeding one hundred rupees, and on such err us. I ins', as to evidcnc and ndcrnnil V ar's! pavinci it 

of expenses incurred b' the Company in investigating Ii 1k as the directors think lit. 

7. Ixcept to the exteni rod in the manner allowed by '''' a pO itJre ti.ruls oHha ( rijits •Hi 

employed in the purchase ol or in loans upon the security oIl he 1 or irpat ivs shi r•cs, 

TRANSFER AM) TRANSlISSI()N Dl" ShARES 

8. The instrument of transfer of any share in physical hrtri in the Company dial I be cxecurc'd hoUr by he 
transfer or and transferee, and the transferor shall be deemed In rcnia in holder of the share until the tart re al iNc 

transferee is entered in the register of members in respect there oI',Shrrre in physical form in the Company slur I he 

tiansfentd in the form attached as Annexure A or in rnv usual or common form which the directors sin' Ii 

approve. 

9. (I) Subject to the restrictions contained in Atlicles 10 and II, the directors shall not refuse to transfer any sltarc 
unless the transfer deed is defective or invalid. The directors may also suspend the registration oftransfcn during the 
ten clays immediately preceding a General Meeting or pro to the determination of entitlement or rights of the 
shareholders by giving seven days' previous notice in the nrrirmer provided in the Act. The directors may, in ease of 
shares in physical form, decline to recognise any instrument of tr'atrster unless- 

a. a lee not exceeding fitly rupees as rvnry he determined by the directors is paid to ta' ('ortiniul' in 
respect thereof; and 

b. the duly statuped instrument of transfer is terllrr!rrtilir'd by the (lertllleate rI' ire sii.it'e:: to •i'. NtHt it 

relates, and such other evidence its the rliicl,,r' tire reir5tr1lihJV require to s (lie rica 

tranfer'or to make the transfer. 

(2) If th djfLctot s to regtctct a ti andcn ol sh ii I irs sir ill thin itt tren days lIter thc d t on \sii it 

the transfer ,d&twaló3gdw,ith the Conipanys end to the trans feree arid tire transfci or notice t the refusal i nclrcat irig 
the defect tansferee who shall. alier removal of such defect or invalidity been titled to re-lodge 
the trans1etdcd l.l1i&'hny' 

Provided th&le ttPliali, shre the transferee is a central dpusitoty the retlisal shall be eonvevcd within use 
clays from the dafeqi w1idh d,irm1rui'nent oftrairsfer was lodged with it not i l'y the defect or inval i dilv to the Ii 

who shall, a Rer hc'di'i tsich defect or oval iclity. hcerr 0 tIer I t, re-lodge the transfer deed with the Coiripai iy. 

'I'RANSMISSION OF ShARES 

JO. Tire ccr'tifieat of title to shares shall be issues tinder rite cttl of tire Company mid signed i's two C 
directors. Evcty cciii fictte ol' shares sl,ai I bear' tl,e liii Lrwir ic ierrcrrd rheron 

''."sns' disposition. tr'anrsici'. ehiuge, sale. pleriet:. ivnirttieerli ri) rss!crrnlerlt 1 or le:tlt :1 it in: 

manner in the Shat'es r'cirrcsenrcrl h' tlds cenIra:rtu is restricted by a Slrat'clrikicis i\,c'i:'n,'ta 
signed between REON turd ENl. Copies ci!' sceli Ar'ccrrrcirts aic available in rhc crtto,iv it 

Company. 

'FIre executors, administrators, legal successors, ornorninecs. is ire stisu: nrav be. da deceased sole luld:r 1 a sItar..' 

shall be the only persons recognised by the Crampa ny to dcrr I s' ir ii tire share in rreeoi'dancc svi ru lie tra Jr a> ,' 

a share registered in the names of two or irtore holders, the su irs rear's or survivor', or the executor's or trciunu 
tIre deceased suR'i vor. din II be the only liersoris recognised he rue (0! ill'strry to den I with the strar'e itt rir:u 

the lasv. 
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I. The shares or other sccInities itt a deceased itetitber shall be traisli'red on apititioti duly s.is 
succession cciii ficate or by law ful award, as tic case I nay be. io(iivour oithe successors to the extent ot'their interests 

and their names sha] be entered to th reuistei' ii iticinbcts. 

A II'ERA'FION OF C'APlTAI. 

I 2. The Company may. by special resot ut mom, passed at a shareholders meeting- 

(at i 0cm-ease itS atit]ioiised C ipital by such aniotint as it thinks expedient. provided that the 
nominal value of shares is I'KR 1(1/- each; 

(b) consolidate and divide h whole or any part of its share capital into shares of larger 
amount than its exist inu shares; 

(c Any capital raised b', the creation olitew sharesshall beeonsidered ut 1k autH 
capital and the ic',', liy.- be si.iltjeet to pIs'SOIiS heicit colitIlner \rm H. 

triusiet, tiaiisiiissiiiii, \Iiilre in otltcr',vse. 

3. SuE ect to the provisions of' the ('oipim iii es Act. 2017 all new sharcs-bclbrc issue, shall it tis: Ill 
instance be oltcrcd to the Slni chitI dci s of th 1 (imp n I', 'armet I) ifl opoitton to',tht flUn)bci of Cs istm n h i' i_s 11 Id 
by such shnreholder.The oiler shall be made. lbilowimg the tinallimotis mipprewal of the isctance of new sbmties. N 
kttei ofoller specifying thc numhst ut sh uc' ollcti.d nid Inmuti ig a turn, wiihmn whit_h th, nit_i ii no li_LI p ii 1 
dci_m to be dc_lined and after tht e\plt itlon is! It It t IL a on lie rcu.lpi Ol in mttliatlun hOiti thL p 0 1 II I 5 

the oiler is m ide that he/che dccli ni_s to iLcept tb. s iii I. s oil ci cii the di mcctims1  Under Se,ct ion SI o Iii_ ( 0)11 tnt 
Act 2017 may dispose of the s ime in suuh m nncl is they think most ltefiqattO the Company The directors m ts 
like wise so dispose ot any new sh ties shmi_h (b te isun of the ratio which he iew shares bear to shares held h 
persons enti tied to an oflcr of' new shai'csl cannot, in Ilk' opinion of the dir'eOrs be convepiently oflered under lIds 
Article. ,, ' - 

I 1. The ness' shares shall be so hjeet to the sane pr visions wit ii ic lèrence to 1ransftr, Irtuismission and othrwise 
as the shares in the original hm re capital. 

15. The Company may, by special resolution, pissed by the Shareholders of the Ccsinpamy reduce i!S Iittrc 
capital in tinY  utatiner and will, and sulieet ti aii incidental anilinrisatioti and consent requited, N law 

6. Subject ti, pi'os'isiotm ot Seetiisii S' iii tic ( tililpilijes Ac, 21)17 the (oIopany may. by spc-ntl ,::euuie. 
pissed by tie Sliaicl,ohdeis ot'the Cimiipiiiv it iii;iiiiis. titer tic 'unditios i he Menor:ts!uiu si 
cancel amiv shtres which at the date utptsiIL ii iii r:.iiltui,n iii thE respect tic to) 'eel aLe; 

to be taken by any Pm's0 any dinminish time IllioltitI iii' ifs authorized share capital by the aitioutti id 511105 so 
cancelled. 

(I'Nt'lt,\ I. \i Ei''li NGS 

I 7. The Statutory General Meeting oi'tlie (1' onip I or shall be held within a period of rifle bonded tail ci gi Ill day; 
From the date on which the Conmpinv is cr1 it led to ,.iin tilence business or nine months from the date ol' i acorporat ill. 
which ever is earlier, as required by Section I .i I of the ("unpanies Act, 2017. 

IS. An Annual Genera! Meeting. shall be held. ri accordance with the provisions of section 132 ol' the 
Conmpanies Act, 201 7.within Sixteen months on i the dule of itleot'porat!on of the Company and there after once atleast 
in every year within a period of one hundred arid twenty days Pal lowing the close of its financial year. All such General 
Meetings will be cal led 'A nniial General Meet m nuts' and ill rithr General Mceti es Will be cal led ' Ix t r;mrird iiary 
General Meetings'. 

19. Subject to provision of Section 33 the directors may, when ever they thinklit, call an Extra ordinar, General 
Meeting of the Company which require appinial it tIe Shamehuldem's in a General Meeting and shall, ii re 
cii' Shu'eholders lepresentiuc, not less than I ('b, ot mis' viii- lin\s'u'r on the' date it ;ii'ptsi ;i 5:11 I 

torthwih proceed to call iii Extr;ioriliiiii-y G'i'r,I mi_Stir'. -\nv diIcetnrot'thc('oulp:- II\' nave, ill Ii 
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General lV1.ccting as long as the quorum is complete. 

20. Twenty one (2 I) day notice at the least sped lti ng thc acci rita. place, he day and the tour &' I' raced ig rtii 

in case of special busities. the general nature of the business. sliil I be given in the maimer pro'rdccI by Such iii I 34(4 
ofthe Act to such persons as prescribed for under the Act and who are entitled 10 receive such notices. lii the cve;ii 

of an emergency affecting the business of the Company, the Itoard nay in aecordancc with Companies Act. 2(il 7. 

make application to the Registrar for a shot-ter notice penod, arid. iftire Registrar authorizes a shorter notice, then an 
Extotordinaty General Meeting may be convened upon such shorier notiuc. 

2 I Chairman of Board will also be Chairman ol' Exlraordinary General Meeting, hut if there is no such 
Chairman, or the Chairman is not present within thirty (30) minutes alter the meeting conmienees. ihc. 
Shareholders present may choose one of the djrectoi-s appointed by R eon rind present at the meeting to lie the 

Chairman. 

22. The Company may provide video-link fici lity 10 its ii embers br attending General Mccl uigs at plriecs t)hlie 

than the town in which General Meeting is taking place alter eoiiiiduriug lie geogi-aphlicli! dispursiI olits lielll!xe, 

23. Mioutes shall lie made in books provii.led by the 13oinh piishliiilt to Scehiiii I S I at he Aci tar 
olall resoluliojis and proceedings at General Meetinus, and a.' iicli li nics is sigiie(I he the ( I raci I 

Meeting iii of die text tbllowing Genera! Meeting and 111pra\'ud by (ic SIiircIiuldcis sliulI eoiisihlc .iihs(,ii 
cvidence of the (bets therein stated without further prool. 

24. All the business trimsacted at a Genera! Meet Jig shall b deemed speeli I other than t lie busi ness latcd in 
sub-section (2) of sect on 134 namely; the consideration of Ii nancial statenients and the leliorts a! the bou'i! am! 
auditors, the declaration of any dividend,the election and appoi ntnrent of directors in place oft hose retiring, tnd tie 
appointment of the auditors and fix big of their remuneration. 

25. No business shall be transacted at. any General Meeting unless a quorum of members is present at that time 
when the meeting proceeds to business. The quorum olthc General Meeting of the Company shall he IWO menibets 
present personally, or through video-link who jointly represent not less than severity-five percent of lie total voting 
power; representatives or nominees from REON and ENI lii be present, either of their own account or as pr-axes. 

VOTES oF MEM RER.S 

26. Exccj'tt's to tjnr'.Th threIection of di i-eetrrrs alit her Sect ion I 5') of the Act, every Slircholilcr cat ti 
vole either in pson or by prp\. and upon 'i o11 L\ i SI' a hiikk I. nUtk (I tO ot rid ftSL it in t I'. 1 Ii 

liii! hue one (1) \otL lu evty shire Coi)rinitL' i iii iIuie' iil held bl iiil, 

2 \ member OX tmorrtd rind,,oi rnrc',peet at \ horn in ordei ti i' lieui iii ide by ,in oui lb i iii, u dft I 

ill !unaey, may vote. t'l ej tfslfowof hands or on a poll or thria gb v (leo link, by his coirii nittec or (it tier legal 
cuardian, and any such committee or guardian may. on a pohl,votc 1w proXy. 

28. On a poll votes may hcgivcn either pesoiinllv or tiirnigIi video-link, by prosy or through pueiia! Isullo: 

l'rovided that no body corporate shall vote by proxy as tiny IS irresolution of its directors iruaccoidanee whit 
the provisions of section 13$ is inlbrcc. 

29. (I) The instrument nppoi fling a proxy shall be inwritiuig under I he hrnd of the appointer or' of ii is attorney duly 
authorised in witing. 

(2) The instrument appointing a proxy and tIlL' poweu'-u)t-atlorncy or other authority (if lily t  under 
which it is signed, or an otarial ly dclii lied copy 01' tInt povicr or hilt rarity, shrill be dcposite.l ,ii the icyisicre I 
office of the Company riot hess than ftirhy-ciglit hours liel(uie the time tbr holding lIme nuetiuieni Wii.'li the 
pCIS0n riruncd in the iuistrunient [M'OpoSes It) VOtU mod iii :le(:muht the instrument 01 prosy sled I not b 
as valid. 

30. An hiStruiliduit Ippruinting a proxy may be in Ihe tarn' mmt:iclicd a /\iunexhhre H. or ii luau ms 



tony he. 

3 A vote given in accordance with the tenus ri an instrument of proxy shall be valid not with standing I 

previous death or insanity of the iincipal or revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the prox vas 
executed, or tire transfir of the share inrespect rt'wlriclr the proxy is given, provided that ni, intimation inwritirrg of 
such death, insanity, revocation or trirnsfttr as a fore said shall have been received by the Company at the office bc1brc 
the commcnccnlent of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the proxy isused. 

I)IRECTORS 

:12. Unless otheiwise agreed hv the Shn relioldeis ii (lenerirl Meeting, the Company sha I have at least rhrec (5 
directors the majority of which l,ci ng resident lit Pak istair with R SON appointing two (2) cli r-cctors arid EN I appoi at 

one (I) director. The fbi lowing shall be llrc first directors of the Company, so, however, that the number of dircetor; 
shall not in any case be less than that spcilied in sectir'rr 154 oF tlte Act and they shall hold office until ihiC el:trtuu 
of directors in the first Annural Genral Mcetrrrrt: 

N'lujtaha llaider Khtair 

2. lnan or Raliniari 

3. ICanirart Ajtnai Mian 

33. The Board shall fix the number of directors thirty-five (35) days bcfoovening thL Genetbl Meeting at 
which the IlirectoN are to be elected, and Ihe number so fixed shall not be chau(excpt x'ilh the prior approval Nv 
special resolution or the Company in a General l\lcet rug. It is clarified that inpeen shtl th,e htimber of directors 
increase beyond three (3) until the same has been so approved by nil the Shareteit  G&al Medting. 

S- . 

34. The directors shall appoint a nominee dnecior' hoot REON as the C aF?mtcn uiThe.Cmpanv. The Board 
may remove Chairman at any I iiuie by unani nioii.s vote (except the vote of tb .J4irnlan  to bc .re1to\'ed 1 
appoint a new Chai rrna ii and such (lvi irntutjr shall lv' ppointed from amongst the i rir'n5 Cll1'cL t ors it R 1 1 
the Board. The term of the Chairrnurn shrill he co-terurimiroits with the term of the Board. A 'etirrng Cb rirruirtu 
be eligible for reappointment and shall preside river he General Meeting at which art elc ott tutU 
held. 

55. An ciectcd director hrmll hold urtlice Etr a prod nitlurec (St years. Itlectiort nt'drre!ors to 
three years. 

36. The Company may by rcsrfutioir it ii (.hcrmertr Meeting remove a director in ticerurduiiic'e with Cittpuutu 
Act. 2017. 

37. If any director resigns or becomes disqcraliticd or ceases for whatever reason prior to the expiry of lie 
three year term, the Board shall appoint arty person to he a director to fill such vacancy within ninety (901 days of 
the vacancy. Any director so appointed shall COt ill>  here rc'Ina i rider of' the term oh the director in whose place her 
appointed. 

5I. The remuneration of the directors shall run time to lime be determined by the Board, provided that 
unless otherwise agreed the nominee clirec Ira's of RI ON and EN! shall not he entitled to any remuneration, 
directors may be reimbursed all reasonable travell rig, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by hirii/ her in 
attending and return log from meetings of directors or ( ienera I Ni cci ings oft he Company or in conruce ti or cc it h the 
discharge of their duties as directors of the Corlrlrarlv 

39. Save as provided in section 15,1 of the Act. rio persturm shall he trppointcd asachirc.ic;r 
member itt rite Company or the only irrilitirlee trio etirgorate Shareholder. 
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POWERS ANI> i)UT]ES OF DIRECTORS 

40. 'Flie Board sha I be responsible for the overul I di rec Ill. silper\.i5IOl) rind Iliallagernent ol the 1 'iii apuri 

Board may pay all expenses incurred in promoting and registering he ( or npruly. arid may exercise r II ich powc 

the Company as arc nni by the Act or by these articles or by the Shirrel older Agreement or by a special rcsl iii mu 

required to be exercised by the Company in General N1eei gs. srihtc rrcvciihless to the provisions 1 due ,\el mr IC' 

any of the Ariieles, or in any such regl ruiic,nrsas niriv be scl'ri'ci liv the ( 'orimprnv in ( ierncrrul vlcetnc hue 

regulations made by the Company in General Meeting sltall nm Ciidalc i\ prior act uitltc diuces helm wiN 

been valid ii such regulations had not been made. 

41. The Board shall appoint a director nominated by Rl:( IN mis the curd exeCutive iii ICCuuIIiilIi('C 

provisions of sections 186 and 187 of the Act, or il'he ceases to tie a director thr any cause, appoint another drr'ecio 

as Chief Executive from REON. 

42. Subject to apl.woval by the Board, arty director rot perittiirettcily resident in Pakistan or any director so 

resident but intending to be absent from Pakistan for a pcild oi not less than three (3) months may appoint any p Si ill 

acceptable to thc Bonn I to be an alternate director of the Cnirtpartv to act hnr him. Every such tppoi II! lilCIll shril he 

made by notice to the Board ill writing under the hand o I' the director tank i tg the appointment (Wi tli a copy to the 

Shareholders). An alternate director will be an acting director, entitled to receive 11011CC of all meetings, rind to attend 

and vote as a director. An appointee director shall ccas to be die director if his appointer fol' an reason is diquaiifled 
or ceases to be a Director or i ihis appoirner returns to Pinkistunri or it' iIi appointee is removed front office 1w notice in 

writing under the hand of the appoiritcr. 

'13. The anlourli for tltc time being remaining Ilndisctlwmr0''a nat ninilcyc holrnao'ed or rauslult by 0Cm': 

the purposes at the Cotilpltit,' (other-wise than by Inc Issue mt .Irlc'cmmlira! t shall lImit it Irr1vti ne. '.vmta.,ii! mi 
of the Company in Gn.-rieral Meeting, exceed the issued sha rn cr era I I the I 'onipitny. 

44. The directors hiull duly coniply with the pros'isi Ins mut lime Act, or any statutory niodihicatiori here ol'hr; hum: 

time being inloicn_ -inn tn p11t1cu11 stth thepiooionc in ig tid ri tit ftg1511 lirOrt oh lie fI IrtlI of ic ml! flung ILL-

charges and pledge aliecting the pi'opert.o ti'Q6tnpat'ty or created by it. to the keeping ofa register ntlme dti:'ctmrs, 

and to the sending to tile registrar or aWa.nhtial. list çnl'.mcmiuei's. iitd ii SII)lttlmlt'V lit' pat'ticnrlm's c'latituc' thcm' 

notice of any consohid rtton on tIlcic','b! sh'iie e Ipil ii or rh di icion ol cli u'. md i aptu ml Ii II 

mimi a COPY of tile registu of dIiecto) and rtotlfieltnonrc ot arms LII ltlgc thetciti 

BOO IS 

45. The directors mImI I cause rcct ñErt ke1lt and'ithiititcs to Ile tirade in book or books with regard tm 

(a) ill resolutions and proceedings nit(knn.'ral Meeting(s) arid tire meeting(s) nf'dir'ectors mimi 

Committee(s) of directors. and every inerriber present at any General Meeting and ceery 

director present at any inceti ntg of directürs nt' ( 'otilmittell of directors shall put Ii is 

signature itt a hook to he kept fhr hat purpose: 

tbr recording bc tithes nat the pci'smls pied-li at macit lllm'eriltg ot the hireerm I'm 1mwt ml 

cullilirhitleC ot'tlte directors, and die I i. mu-i'tl Ml'ctithp: mud 

IC) all r,r'dcrs r'riade by the nIire'lmuid mrrj ( u'r'uulllttr'els) ut 

Provided that all records i-elated to procecdmgs llirottgh shico-Intik shrill he nnaintai red in IrceormiltiCe sm'rth 

the relevant regulations spccilied by the ('omrnrssilull wltiutu shall he appt'irpnrrtelv rendered Into cm cumin' .me 

part of the minute books according to the sad re-gin Far 11115 

1'IfE SI'Al, 

46. The directors 5111111 provide for the sath custody of the seirl iimd the seal shrill not be affixed to any 11t5t1ui -ml  

except by tile authority ofa resolution of the board ol'ditcctors ir hi a cmmrnmittec of dit-ectors authorized itt nh' 
by tile directors and in the presence ot at least two directors nt nd nt the mci: i'ctrwy or sue Ii other person as th 

may appoint tar tire purpose; and those two di teetot's and secretary or tither person as a tot'e said sl or II 
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instrument to which the seal of the Company is so allixed in their presence. 

I)ISQtiAt .Il'l('.i'tON OF DIRECTORS 

47. No person shall become the director of a Company if he suffers front any of the disabi Iitie or 
disquali fcatioiis mentioned in section 1 53 or disquali bed or dcbancd from holding such oflice under any of' the 

provisions of- lire Act as the ease nay be and, ii' alrcuiv a director, shall cease to hold such officc front the date he so 

bc'eorncs disqualified or disabled: - 

Provided, however, that no director shall ','aeate his riIic 'v reirsoul ont of his being a member of rue carrrpar 

which has entered i ito contracts with, or rlon irne sc irk f-br, he Cornperov of' which he is director, hr 0 sire ii ree 00 

shall not s'ote in respect ofanv such corrlr-aci or svnrk. irl fhe noes so vote, his vote shall nra be counted hr ease 0 

such conflict rn interest. tlr resolintirini droll he adopted nv hr- General Meetine'. 

lnROCFl,:DlN ;s OF DlRl-C'l'OlS 

48. The directors may meet iooether for the dispatch of' business, adjourn and otherwise icpLtlat(: their rnr.xa' irs, 

as they think fit: provided that the directors shall i ned rn least once itt each quarter of a calendar year-. A di rector in -v. 

and the sectetary on the requisition ofa dircetur shrill, at arnytmie,stimnlori a meeting ol'c.iirrecinrrs. Notice Scut Ia in 

direct or throng he nail whether sticlr director is iii 'ak hitari or otrtsrde l'ak islart slral I be avid id not ice. 

49. TIre directors shall from among the directors appointed by REON, elect a chairman of the Boar'd ofdirecror-u 
and determine the period for which he is to hold ofliceifat any meeting the chairman is not present within ten rfli110te5 

r 11cr the tune rppointcd for holding the s unr_ or r trnvoU tn, to it t rs chit rm in the dircetot ' present rn ly choose on 

of their number to he chairman 01' then mee1i0ta'-. 
Y•: 

O Ark rst two (2 ) chrectors ol is hirr Ic id 01 e riortirnated by c ich Sh ii holder for the ti tic hen n at the 

C orlip r ny p Lien pci sane I ly or t In rot tg Ii i deot,il d1  nil coniC r t ti c r quor urn 

5 I. Save as otherwise expressly fir 1dhi fh quest ions at meetings ol' the hoard shall 

dcterntirted b rut qorrtx ol votes of the rlrrcr.irrr pu at rn person on through video Irnk reh rirre or h 'tin 

vote In e is iii rn eqir rl lv of mu on r lr r hum a 'h ill i ii e r'.t nn vote in dint mu in I ann ii ii I 

director. .: 

52. Other cludstioirs as listed in tire Slrirctmitden :s-.rccrlrcrmr, at urectirres of' tire boar'd shall be uletr:Frruircd 0 

irnanirni ty of' votes of the (I i rector from each Slia relnnlde r 

53. The directors may delegate any uI their power'. riot mclii it'd to he exercised i in their much no to cornrvrrr tee 
consisting of such member or niciribers ot'their body ri they tlninrk tii any continuttecs tomrm'd shall. rrn tire esennea-

of' the powers so delegated, conform to arty rc5tricrnnnrrs thai may he -imposed on them -Lw thie-dircm,rtors. 

54. (I) Acomitriltee may elect a chair'nerri it its nrcctincrni: hint, it nosnieli chairniarr is eiccted, or il'at roy ninecririg 
the chairman is not pn'esenl within ten ni mrtcs after ti' rime appi dined fir holding the same or is urrwi Ii big to act as 

chairman, tire members present may choose nc of' their irtirtibet' to be chrr irman of' the meeting. 

2) A committee may fleet nor I rilir run ii sit tlnnk Propel. Questions arising it any meeting shall be 

detcrniincd by a majority of vott'5 01' tIre rnemmrbers present. In case ofan equality of'votes, the chairman shall 

have and exercise a second or castings ore. 

55. Al! acts done by any nreetrng of the ni ce'trnr'. or out ccnnrirrniiter' ol directors, or hv alto persin acinne ri 

director, shall, riot with standing that it be a tierwards I scnivered that tiien' was some (IC iict no the appim n incur a [in 
such directors or persons acting iS a forestal, or rtrrnr riley or nov ot'ttnc'rnr we're disqinrili ext. bc is s'nliii ii'. 
ucln person had been drrly appoinrnr.'d rail was qnnnutiircnl a tic: rlrrn:intnar' 

56. A copy of the drab minutes of nrcetit)u of' the board oflitcetors shall be firrrushed to every director svrtliirr 

seven working days ot' the date of fleeting. 

- 

57. A r'esolution ill writing signed Lw all tire directors signatures being ill the sante docirmerit Or se 



the time hein entiticd II) receive notiCe ofa iiieetiiie ol' he iI!ieta' shell as valid mid eiteeid 
passed at a meeting oi ti ic directors duly COi)\.encd and he lii 

FILLIN( OF \'AC\NCII:s 

58. At the first Annual General Mcetjn of (tic' Company, all (lie directors shall stand retired ftoiri ol1ce, and 
directors shall be cleetcd in their place in accordance with see! in I 50 Ii a (cnn ol' three yeas. 

59. A retiring director shall be eligible for rc-elccon. 

60. The directors shall comply with (lie provisions otsccllons I 5410 159 and sections 161. 162 end 167 elating 
to the election of dii-eetor' and matters ancillary thereto. 

61 Any casual vacancy occurring on the board of' direclois may he Ii led up by the directors, hut the person so 
chosen shall be subject to retirement at the seine lime as if he I ad hcoii ic it director on the day on svh cli the director 
in whose place he is chosen was last elected as diteetor. 

62. 'Ilic Genera I Meeting may remove a di rector but univ in accordance svil It the provisions ot ticAct 

F)lVll)ENIIS ANI) llSlk\F 

;3. i6(cieiaI v1eeIing shalt dcc lare di\ aid Ii iiiLiniliioiid iiia'isi1llI 01 0i SlIi.ii,a 

64 The dus.ctot sjnay ltointune(o tlfl1 p i to tn muiilici' sudi IniLi in di idends Os 'ippc ir (0 tic dir, ct i a 
hr. just fled bthc pi Qlic of Lli Crimp tn it eppros cd b Oil ii) liii illS (lCd 151(1(1 iii t1t. Shai choldu S 

6 AnV\d1.vtdJ1 may b paid by tIle  Compan ci thu iii tsh in to ki id on lv outo I its ni olil I hr p liii 
dividend in knliULoMy.bo fi thehd e of harcs of listed eonlpany held bytli distributing coinpinis 

66 Dividend thall ile paid out of un,cliiccl gun oit Iiicsliiirnt pInpcxt cicditcd to p10th iiid loss rd 011111 

67. Subject to the rights ol p  ons (if any) entitled to slaucs with special rights as to dividends. all dividends 
shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid on the shares. 

(I) 'l'he directors may, be fore reconimendinc any dividend, Set C side Out of (lie protits of the 
company such sums as they think proper as a reserve or rcsers'cs svhiic.li shall. attlied is ciCiiiiii 

ol the directors, be applicable for iticetilig crni'ngenCics. rir br Cqtl!lli7iIi (hiviClelihId. ii 
any other pLlrl.lose ho vhieli the aroti!c it hl,cl(llflFdlhiynhny lie ituperl' appis1, ib(ii 

such application iiiii', at the like liseiehiuo. cuhici lie employed iii he htiiiies 
he invested in such investiiients (Oilier than shares ol the Company) hid the directors 
subject to the provisions ot'the Act,broiii time io tune thititstit, 

(2) Ihe directors nay carry tot s5ari any phiiitid \vliieii they iiia' 00(1k irLntelit ((0! (ii di!i hliLihi. 
without setting them a side as a reserve. 

6$. Ifsevera1 persons arc. registered as joi it-hoWei-s Of:hil\ share ii one oh them may rove citechihat receipt 
any dividend pay able on the share. 

69. (I) Notice of any dividend that may have hicei dec Itued shi1 I he given in manner here in a tier 
iiieiitioned to (he persoos entitled to share there in but, in the case ob a 1)01)1 ie company, the COUlpilils nay cisc sod I 

not icc by advcrtisemctii in a newspaper ci rcuilat ing in the Pros' i neci n wh cli the registered 11ie of titC conipaiiy is 
situate. 

(2) Any dividend declared by the company slttdl be1niid toils registered shareholders orto 
The dividend payable in cash may be paid by cheque or warrant or in any electronic 
shareholder sent it led to the payment of the dividend. is per their direction. 

70. The dividend shall be paid withal the period laid tIara, uiiilei the \ut. 
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-\('(OUNTS 

7 . '['he ilitcetnis shall Cause In he kept propi'r hooks in al'ciitrni as icquired under section 221). 

72. The books of aCcount shall br: sill cit the riisteied office of the Comptinv or a! such orirer Lrce as cia 

directors shall think fit and shall he open ci ii pecrin he Ire direclarsclurirtg business how's. 

73. Thc directors shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent and itt what time and placc.s arid 

tinder what conditions or regulations the accounts and hooks or papers of the Company or univ of' thorn shall hi open 

to the inspect ion of members not being di rectors. rrid no member (riot being a clirecror) sha I ha cc any i gin 

inspecting any account and book or paper's ol'the (.'oinpanv except as conferred by law or authorised by the directors 

or by the Company in General Meeting. 

74. The directors shall as required by scelious 223 and 226 of the Act cause to be prepar'cd and to lie laid bicirc 

the company in General Mccl jug the iintrncial statements duly audited and rcportsas arc referred tom those Secliciuiii. 

75. The Ii nrincial statements aird other reporis re ft-rued to in Article 79 shall be made on! in every year and laid 

before the Company in the annual Generni Mct ing iii aecor'dtirice with seCtiOns 132 and 223. 

76. A copy of' the financial statements arrd reports ct' directors and auditor's shall, titletist twenty-onc (cii\i 

preceding the nec! i ng. be sent to lire persons en hr icd mn receive noticcs of General Meetings in tIre mariner in v Inch 

notices arc In be given lrer under. 

77. The ilireemnirs shall iii all respeur corrljilv with 1JIC pii)Vr'tioitS or sections 221) 

7i. Auditors halI be appoirmied arid ilicir rftrries rctiulated!n accordance wjtlisecircirrs :!46 rn, 2-);. 

V)IILI S 

79 (1) A notice may bc givun h till Coinnnny to rry metnhr,r to-'hts i LgNkrcd rddi uss I 1 a 1 

icgistcrcd iddiess In P'akist1in to tIn. iddrcss rt my surpohned by hnm to thc ( ompitly lot lIre r\ IIL of 00111 r n 1 

Inst rn acknos Id lgr. merit or b P  it 01 1.0111 nI_n ', I lu, ('in thu ii tb i_ lct tOO IC nit_ll1S (ii Ii 115' OtltlI tO 1111)1. 1 tO I 

he specified by tire Commission. - 

2) \-Vlmere a 11011CC S sent by post, service (lithe notice shall he deemed to he effected by properly 

addressing, prepaying and posting a letter containing the notice and, unless the contraly is proved, to 

have been effected at the time at wInch the letter will be delivered in the ordinary course of' post. 

80. A\ noticc may be given by the c'arnpanv tm. the joint-bidders of a share by giving the notice to he oirrI-bnldi 

named first in the register in respect o I' the shane. 

81. A notiCe nray be giverr by the cornnpcinv 1 II, per'sorl entiticii tin in share ricorlsuqtieflci ut lie its';cih 

insolvency cii ii merriher inn the mariner provided rrmrclur Article 8'4 addressed to them by name, or I- fine th; or 

nepi'esenitativcs of th deceased, or assignees cii ill: in'itvenr, or by airy like (lesCrlptiorr. mit lie ;ddress sri;i)  saci Ion 

the piirposc by tire persoinciaimnniiig In N n'l-rmtiiluul. 

$2 Notie ci fevem'y General Meeting shall hu cri in the manner here in hefire a iitlion'r sed o (a) every rnenlmicr 

o I' the Company cincl also to (b) every person en! it led to a share ii consequence of' the death or i iso) vnnv nil Ii merui lu 

who but ('or his death or insolvency would he i'mnritld I receive rmolicC cii the meeting, arid ref tin the uii.rditirci cii tire 

Company fr the time being and every person who is ermnitled no receive notice of General Meetings. 

\'LNI')ING UI' 

83. (I) In the case of members' vol unttnry wi I rdinigup, with the Sanction of a speci ti i'esoh Lntion (II lb 

and, in tire case of c i-editors' vol u ntai'y windingup. ot a meeting of' the creditors, the I iquidaror shall 
the powers given by sub-section (I) of seCtion 337 of he Act tO liquidator in a windingup by the (44r mmmclud ri 

i,iter-a/ki divide amongst the members, in specie or' kind, the whole or any part of the assets ot'the C iiyg 

' K 
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they consist of property of the same kind or not. 

(2) For the purpose a fore said, the liquidnior nay set such value as he deems fair upon any property 
to be divided as a 'ore said and may detcnnin tow such division shall be carried Out as between the 
members or differeit classes of members. 

(3)The liquidator may, with the like sanction. die '' hole or any part of such as sets in trustees UOfl 

such trusts for the benefit of the contributorie as die hquidator. with the like SanCtiOn, thinks fit,but so 
that nornembcr shall be compelled to aceepi ans shares or other securities where upon there is any 
liability. 

IN I) EM NIT V 

4. Every officer or agcnt for the time being of the (injn may be indemnified out ol the assets of the 
company against any liability incurred by him in dcfendintz i pioceedings. whether civil orcrimninal. arising our of 
his dealings in relation to the affairs of the company, cuco hose brought by the Company against him, in which 
judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted. o n connccton with any application under secti 
which reliefis granted to him bythe Court. 
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We, the seveinl persons wlio.e IVIeS tutu ad.iresses tire ubsciibed below. arc desirous o 

being ionncd into a (ompzlnv. llrpuistolace ci these articles ol associatioti, anti we respeclivek acre: 
to take lb enuniber ci shares in the capital ci the ( imlpany set opposite our espec Live PaniCS: 

Name and slirnanie 

(present & tbrmer) 

lit full (in Itlock 

Letters) 

MC No. (in case 

of foreigner. 

Passport No) 

Fallrer'sl 

Huabirnds 

Nanre in Sill 

Naiionialily lies) 

ri'iilt arty Sr,ner 

Nalion,rlitr 

Ocenpulion Usual residential 

address in liii or Ire 

registered! principal 

ollice address lirr a 

subscriber other II ran 

mitrira I persott 

Nriitrbcr 1 

Shares taken F 

each subscriber 

(in igures arid 

wants) 

Signurirret 

IINI irrieruatiotial 
I) 

Fhroirgir Nominee 

Karuran Ajutial 
Mian 

33264964 

- 

421(11-34(12641-3 

Subscriber 

Ajrniul hi hut 

NcrIrrkird 

..:. 

P:rkisrnrr• 

' :. 

Sersices 

SIrawirrkylaarr 
I 725, 11)77 XX 
Atnslerdant:tI1e-'.-SharesOnlel' 
Netherlands, 

I-louse ncr 'I-tb, I Fast 
Sired, Phase I Dl-l\ 
Clifton Canu 
Karachi South 

48,0011 (Fort 
eight fhcrnsarid 

tatujiaba h-laider 
Khan 

422111-114922 12-h Austin I tuFter' 
Kharr 

l',rk Iuarr Sers'iccs 

_- - T:.: 

Bhayani Suriview, 
Guishan-c-IqhaI, 
House no 124 Stack 
It, Karachi Cenlr,r I 

:4tkistaru 

I (One Share 
Onlyl 

In rrrr Un K ibm in 3 '2(11 I 37547-I 9 1 su il 
Rahrnaair 

hi rOot iii ,crk Ices ' 
', 

'is. 5 .,CanttS. 

,I Ouu-)ria 1 '300 
a'rRoad, LaIrrar' 

I (One 5lrri 
Only) 

iteotu I ner,y 
Limited 

Tlror-rtgh Nornirtee 

Nirrjtaha I-Itrirhei 
Klsrru 

008iTh8 I 

42201-0.192212-I 

Suoerrhrr 

Annum hlaider 
Klrtirm 

I it st or 

. 

l'rkkt,rri 

\ " 
. 

, 
' --- 

•.: ' ' ----'- . 
':- .: ç ...,IhIitiY1ui 

Serie,a---' '. ' . 
' 

Diwcuod iritic 
luLl }h in Ito id 
Kais, ri 

• 

Srirrt'reu. 
(iinlsharr-e-1n1hum1, 
I linrianu in' I !-1 III,,ek 

• Ku,r';rcli ('emit,',,1 
'akisiurru 

it Q9S (Ses urts 
One 'flronr'orrd 
1%j ruri i-Isrrrdnerl rid 
iry-  [hurt 

Sirtires (nOV 

loOnl nrrnihei' FmIrtnin I:nkerr tin rrnuri'es snarl vords) I2IF0Ii0 (One 
I ItmnrlrrtI amid 

Ii, 

I 

Dated the 7th day orAugirat, 2018 
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Annexure A 

Form for Transfer ol Shares 
(i7i*1 Schedule to the c'nn,i,uiiws Ac!. 2017) 

..sio rio (hereina Ilci ca led "the n'anslia'or'') in considerat ion of (I ic stint 
of rupees  paid tome by so   70  (here iii alier called 
"the transferee"), do here by transfer to the said transferee the share (or shares) with disi ilictive iiiinihei-s 
from  to inelusivc,in the GRID EbGE (I'RIVA'I'E) LIMITED, to hold unto the said 
transferee, his executors, administrators and assigns.stibeet to the several conditions on which I held I lie sti nic at the 
lime of the execution hereof, and I. the said trans ftree. do icrc lvs  lLtCC 0 take the said share tot sliiiis) siihc ii' 
the conditions afore said. 

As wimess our hands this day of.............................. 2(1  

I 
I 
I 
I 

Signature  
Transferor 
Full Name, Father's/Husband 'sName 
CNIC Number(in case of foreignet; 
Passpoii Number) 
Nationality 
Occupation and usual Residential Address 

Witness I: 

Signature d'ite  
Name, CN IC' Nutitber and Full Address  

S igtttlt lilt.  
l'rt,nsleree 

I Name, Fat her's/I-I ushand'sNanie 
Ni C' Nut the r( in case of foreigner. 

lasspoii Number) 
Nat jot at I ity 
(keupalion and usutl Residential Address 
(i'cll number 
Land line number, if tiny 
lmttiI address 

\Vi i' 2 

.',i(0Ilttitl'  .  tht Le  

i Ni(: Number and Full Adiress 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Bank Account Details o fTr ansferee br I'aynie a I of Cash Dividend 
(Mandatoty in case of a listed company or opt unit fur tiny oilier Cotilpility) 

11 is requested that all my cash dividend amottuts declared by the C'oinparty. may be credited into 
following 

(/ _s 

"•:c 

I statedth(4Ja above mentioned information is coned a id that I will iiiiiinate the changes in the above' 
iriformatidhtothCbth'1anyond the concerned Share Reisliar Is soon tts these occur. 

SignatLii-e of (he '1t'anslcr'ee( 

the 

Tile of Bank' Account 

Buik-A4ount, Number 

i'iiie and Address 

I 
I 
I 
I 
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.•\ii nxuc H 

I NS'FR UPI EN]' OF PRoXY 
XXXXXN (1vate) Limited 

r'o  
 being a member of the (.R11) EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED, hen±v 

appoint 'o rio  as my proxy 
to attend and vote Dfl my behalf at the (statutory, annual, extraordinmy, as the case may be) General 
Company to he held on the day  ol ., 20 and at any adjournment flier 
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GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022 
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AfFERGUSON Co 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the members of Grid Edge (Private) Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Grid Edge (Private) Limited (the Company), 
winch comprise the statement of financial position as at December 3], 2022, and the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 

cash flows for the year then coded, arid notes to the financial statements, including a sunimary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that We hii\'e nina jilOf 

all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were tecessaj-v 
for the purposes of the audit. 

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the 
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other coniprehenswc income, the. 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes harming pilo 
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so reqnircd and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2022 ainl 
of the loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then 
ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lSAs) as applicable 
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit oft/ic  Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of 
Ethics for ProfessionalAccouiitants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Codp. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provid a Ictr,i har 
our Opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information Comprises the 
information included in the Directors' Report, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement.of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have no 
in this regard. 

A. P. i:ER(;usov X. CO. C/iori,,vd .1 ccominla,tts, 0 nw,nher/irm u/ c/cc Pu 'C 
Su0e Li!a lOiIcIiiiq \'o. i -C, II. C /i nc/iiqo Root!, p () / j0 .  .j .j u . Kw'och/-'.vo, Pu &i5E(I/I 

i'd: ' -02 (:0) : /200h'2'6/3242071 /-'/; !'aa': -,'92 (22) , i25tcoZJ/2.42'9'/S'','2/247..Ic); K 

KARACHI LAHORE ISLAMABAD 
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pwc AF FERGUSON . Co 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, hut is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always cictet a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding ofinternd control relevant to the audit in order o design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose o1 CXpress Jig 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that ma%' cast significani doubt on the Company's ability to conlinue as a going 
concern. Ifwe conclude that a material unccrtainty CXIStS, we arc required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, sti'ucture and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the 13oaid of Directors regarding, among other matters, the pin 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficionci 
control that we identify during our audit. 

2 of 3  pages 



The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is 0 

J 

A. F.'Pcrguson & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
I(arachi 

Date: Maya, 2023 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
1. 
I 
I 
I 

pwc AF+ERGUSONCo 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinjofl 

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act. 
2017 (XIX of 2017); 

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statement of changcs in equity and the statement of cash flows 
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the Company's business; and 

Cd) no Zakat was deductib]e at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980). 

IJDIN: AR2O2210080VIEJCzIuv 
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Chief Executive Director 

I 

GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022 

2022 2021 

(Restated) 

Note Rupees  
ASSETS 

Non-current asset 

Property, plant and equipment 3 152,488,711 163,912,226 

Current assets 

Prepayments and other receivables 4 152,205 777,534 
Trade debts 5 8,887,880 12.447.715 
Sales tax refundable 6306,007 10,496,921 
Short-term investment 6 22,145,475 12,362,308 

Cash and bank balances 7 9,654,722 6,685,834 

Total current assets 47,146,289 42770,312 

TOTAL ASSETS 199,635,000 206682,538 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 8 37,200,000 37,200,000 

Accumulated loss (15,476,432) (13,143,866) 

Total equity 21,723,568 24,056.134 

Non-current liability 

Long-term loan 9 104,844,709 118,854141 

Current liabilities 

Current portion of long-term loan 9 14,390,460 14,390,460 

Trade and other payables 10 45,903,770 44,038,628 

Accrued mark-up 11 12,361356 5,212.722 

Taxes payable 411,137 130,453 

Total current liabilities 73,066,723 63,772,263 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 177,911,432 182,626,404 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 199,635,000 206,682,536 

Tle annexed notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements. 



GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Note 

2022 

Ru pee s 

2021 

(Restated) 

Revenue 13 30800,128 23132,571 

Cost of revenue 14 (15,316,669) (18,820,054) 

Gross profit 15,483,459 4,312,517 

Administrative expenses 15 (4009,366) (3,985,618) 

Allowance for expected credit loss 5 (544,250) 

Other income 16 1,799973 656,985 

Operating profit 12729,816 983.984 

Finance cost 17 (14,540,390) (8,183,606) 

Loss before taxation (1,810,574) (7,199,722) 

Taxation (521,992) (185497) 

Loss after taxation (2,332,566) (7385.219) 

Other comprehensive Income: 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive loss for the year (2,332,566) (7,385,219) 

Loss per share - basic and diluted 18 (0.63) (2 11) 

The annexed notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chief Executive Direct 
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GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

    

Issued, 
subscribed 
and paid up 

capital 

Advance 
agaInst Issue 

of shares 

Revenue Reserve 

 

 

Accumulated loss Total 

 

Rupees 

Balance as at January 1,2021 1,200,000 36,000000 (3,778,062) 33421938 

Total comprehensive loss for the year - (Restated) (7385,219) (7,385,219) 

Transaction with owners: 

Issue of righl shares 36,000,000 - 36000000 

Transfer of advance against issue of shares (36,000,000) (36.000,000) 

Issuance cost of shares (1,980,585) (1980,585) 

Balance as at December 31, 2021 (Restated) 37,200,000 (13,143,866) 24,056,134 

Total comprehensive loss for the year (2,332,566) (2,332,566) 

Balance as at December 31, 2022 37,200,000 (15,476432) 21,723,568 

The annexed notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chief Executive Directo 



The annexed notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chief Executive Direct 

GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

I 

I 
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2022 2021 

(Restated) 

Note Rupees  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Loss before taxation (1810,574) (7.199,722) 

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items: 

Finance cost 17 14,540,390 8,183,606 

Interest income on short-term investment 16 (1,799973) (656,985) 
Depreciation 14 11,423,515 7,354866 

22,353,358 7,681765 

Working capital changes: 

Decrease I (increase) in current assets 

Prepayments and other receivables 625,329 3c,'i3o,4U) 
Trade debts 3,559,835 (12,447,715) 

Sales taxes refundable 4,190,914 (10496,921) 

8,376078 13,993,830 

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 1,865,142 (74,111,900) 

Cash generated from /(used in) operations 32,594,578 (52,436,305) 

Taxes paid (241,308) (55,044) 

Finance cost paid (7,010,728) (4,540,426) 

Net cash generated from I (used in) operating activities 25,342,542 (57,031,775) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Additions to property, plant and equipment 

including capital work-in-progress (56,456,01 ; 

Short-term investments made (8,508,791) (10,31 1,915) 

Interest received 290,026 366,955 

Net cash used in investing activities (8,218,765) (66,430,969) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

issuance cost of shares (1,980,585) 

Proceeds from long-term loan, net of transaction cost 132,899,066 

Repayment of long-term loan 9.1 (14,390,460) 

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (14,390,460) 130,918,481 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,733,317 7,455,737 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 8,446,201 990,464 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19 11,179,518 8,446,201 
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GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 

1.1 Grid Edge (Private) Limited (the Company) is a private limited company. incorporated in Pakistan on 
August 8, 2018 under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act). The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary 
of Reon Energy Limited (the Holding Company) which is a subsidiary of Dawood Lawrencepur Limited 
(the Ultimate Parent Company). 

1.2 The principal business of the Company is to own and operate electric power generation project and to 
supply electricity as an independent power producer. The Company currently holds a generation 
license of upto 2MW for generation and sale of electricity to Procter & Gamble Pakistan (Private) 
Limited (P&G) as a bulk power consumer. The plant has been constructed at P&G's facility, Bin Qasim 
Town, Karachi. The Company's registered office (which is its sole business unit) is situated at 3rd 
Floor, Dawood Centre, M. 1. Khan Road, Karachi. 

1.3 The business units of the Company include the following: 

Business unit Geographica' location 

Head office 3rd Floor, Dawood Centre, M.T. Khan Road, Karachi 

Solar power plant Procter & Gamble site. Port Qasim 

1.4 The Company during the year has incurred a loss after tax of Rs. 2,332,566 and its accumulated 
losses as at December 31, 2022 amount to Rs, 15476,432. Further, the Company's current liabilities 
exceed its current assets by Rs. 25,920,434. In addition, as at reporting date, the Company is in 
breach of specified financial ratios under the Re-Term Finance Agreement with Pak Oman Investment 
Company Limited (POlCL) as explained in note 9.5 to the financial statements. The primary reason for 
loss for the year and adverse financial ratios is increase in finance cost on liabilities towards Holding 
Company. However, ihe Holding Company has committed financial support to the Company including 
its liabilities towards the Holding Company. Further, POICL has communicated waiver with respect to 
compliance with financial ratios. In view of the same, there is no material uncertainty relating to the 
aforementioned events with respect to Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY NOTES 

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are Sat out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated. 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unl 
stated. 
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2.2 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan 
comprise of: 

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Act; and 

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act. 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the lFRSs, the provisions of and 
directives issued under the Act have been followed. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional 
currency. 

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the applicable accounting arid reporting 
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to 
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and 
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, 
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and libililies 
within the next financial year are as follows: 

2.4.1 Property, plant and equipment 

The Company reviews the appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residunl 
values used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable 
amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. 

2.5 Initial application of standard, amendment or interpretation to existing standard 

2.5.1 a) Amendments to accounting and reporting standards that became effective during the year 

There are certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that became effective 
during the year ended December 31, 2022, however, these are considered not to have a 
significant impact on the Company's financial reporting and therefore have not been presented 
here, except for: 

- Amendment to lAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before the intended use 

In 2020, the International 'Accounting Standard Board ('lASB) published an ai'rieridinenl -' 
Proceeds before intended use to lAS 16 - 'Property, Plant and Equipment' (lAS 16). As a 
result, the net proceeds received from selling the Output produced before the asset is ready for 
its intended use are to be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. PmviouIv, sn:r 
proceeds were deducted from the cost of the asset. This amendment is to apphed 
retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are .broughl to the 
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner Inler -d--
by management on or after beginning of the earliest period presented in the 
statements, in which the entity first applies the amendment, i.e. January 1, 2021. 74,\ 



(16,268,192) 3,124,326 Accumulated losses 

Amount 
previously 
reported 

Effect of 
adoption of 
amendment 
Rupees  

Amount as 
restated 
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The impact of changes introduced by this amendment has been disclosed n note 2.52 

b) Standards, amendments and interpretation to published standards that are not yot 
effective and have not been early adopted by the Company 

There are standards and certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that are 
not yet effective and are also not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial 
reporting and therefore, have not been presented in these financial statements. 

2.5.2 Adoption of Amendment of lAS 16 - Proceeds before intended use 

As per the amendment, any net proceeds from selling items produced while bringing an item of 
property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management shall be recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income. During the year, the Company has retrospectively adopted 
the amendment in lAS 16 - "Proceeds before intended use" as per the transitional provision of Ihe 
amendment. The impact of adoption on the opening balances as at January 1 2022 are as follows' 

Effect on statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021 

Amount Effect of 
previously adoption of Amount as 
reported amendment restatrid 

Rupees  

ASSETS 

Property, plant and equipment 

EQUITY 

160,787,900 3,124,326 163,912,226 

Accumulated losses (16,268,192) 3,124,326 (13,143,866) 

Effect on statement of profit or loss for the year ended December 31, 2021 

Amount Effect of 
previously adoption of Amonrir as 
reported amendment restated 

Ru Fees  

Revenue 18,376923 4,755.648 23.132,571 

Cost of revenue (17,188,732) (1,631,322) (1 6,820 ,051 

Effect on statement of changes in equity for the year ended December 31, 2021 
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Effect on statement of cash flows for the year ended December31, 2021 

Amount Effect of 

previously adoption of Amount as 

reported amendment restated 

Rupees  

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loss before taxation (10,324048) 3124326 (7.195,722) 
Depreciation 7214,675 140191 735,5G5 

Net cash flows from operating activities (60296292) 3,264,517 (57,031,775) 

There is no impact of the amendment on the opening balances of 2021. 

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 

2.6.1 Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
asset. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. 

Disposal of asset is recognized when significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership have been 
transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are 
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

2.6.2 Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized at lhe cOrrynn 
amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the pail wiU flow 
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognized. The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as they are incurred. 

2.6.3 Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on straight 
line method basis whereby the cost of an asset is written off over its estimated useful Fife. Depreciation 
on additions is charged from the date on which the asset is available for use and on disposals up to 
the date of disposal. The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each item of 
property, plant and equipment that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, 
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 

2.6.4 Impairment 

Assets are reviewed for impairment 'Nhenever events or changes in circumstances thaI 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount hywricu 
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount s InC uqiin' 

an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes nf assosnino 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash 
flows (cash-generating units). 

2.7 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, deposits held with banks and highly liquid 
investments with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition. Runnin 
facilities availed by the Company, if any, which are repayable on demand and form an in 
the Company's cash management are included as part of cash and cash equivalents 
of the statement of cash flows. 
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2.8 Financial instruments 

2.8.1 Financial assets 

Classification 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: 

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 
through profit or loss); and 

those to be measured at amortized cost. 

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other 
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in 
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this 
will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition 
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensi'ie income. The Company 
reclassifies debt investments when and Only when its business model for rnanaginç those assets 
changes. 

Measurement 

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a 
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attnbutable to 
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value ihrounh 
profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

Debt instruments 

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for 
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement 
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments: 

(a) Amortized cost 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding are measured at 
amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortized 
cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss when Ihe asset is 
derecognized or impaired, interest income from these financial assets is inciiideo in hnars 
income using the effective interest method. 

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows that are solely repayments of principal 
and interest on principal amount outstanding and for selling the financial assets are measured at 
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (001), 
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange 
gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, 
the cumutative gain or loss previously recognized in CCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss 
and recognized in other gains I (tosses), Interest income from these financial assets is included in 
finance income using the effective interest method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are 
presented in other gains and losses and impairment expenses in other expenses. 

(c) Fair value through profit or.loss (FVPL) 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at 

through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measi 
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in 
and presented net in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive mccii 
gains I (tosses) in the period in which it arises. 
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Equity instruments 

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value; Where the Companys 
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair vaiue gains and losses to profit 
or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be 
recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is 
established. 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in other 
gain I (losses) in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as applicable. 
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are 
not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have 
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the hsks ard 
rewards of ownership. 

2.8.2 Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially measured at fair value 
less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at 
fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchángé and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income. 

2.8.3 offsetting 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial 
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an 
intention to settle either on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

2.8.4 Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt 
instruments (other than trade receivables) carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The impairment 
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Lifetime 
Expected Credit Losses (ECL) are recognized when there has been a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial assets has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial asset 
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL under IFRS 9. 

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by FRS 9. which 
recluires expected lifetime losses to be recognizod from initial recognition of the rrceiv 
measure the expected credit tosses, trade receivables are grouped based on share 
characteristics and the days past due. 
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2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is 
estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognized as an 
expense in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The recoverable aniou1t 
is the higher of an assets fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained 
through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of 
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). 

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that w uld have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if 
no impairment loss had been recognized. 

2.10 Trade debts and other receivables 

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is 
unconditional unless they contain a significant financing component, in which case these are 
recognized at fair value. The Company holds the trade debts and other receivables with the objective 
to collect contractual cash flows and, therefore, measures them subsequently at amortized cost using 
effective interest method, 

2.11 Trade and other payables 

These are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. These are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within twelve 
months or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business ii longer). If not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities. Exchange gains and losses arising from translation in respect of liabilities in 
foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities. 

2.12 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources wilt be required to settte the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

2.13 Borrowings 

Borrowings are recognized initially at fab value, net of transaction casts incurred. Borro..'ings are 
subsequently carried at amortized cast, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) 
and the redemption value is amortized over the period of the borrowings. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

2.14 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurr 
such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
which case such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. 
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2.15 Share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at face value. Incremental costs, if any, 
directly attributable to the issue of shares, are recognized in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the 
proceeds. 

2.16 Foreign currency transactions and translation 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are 
translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange which approximate those prevail!nçj at lh 
financial position date. Exchange differences are included in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

2.17 Revenue recognition on supply of electricity 

The Company recognizes revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied i.e. delivery of energy 
output at the Energy Delivery Point to P&G. Revenue is recognized based on the rates determined 
under the mechanism laid down in the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA). 

The Company has assessed that the performance obligation in its contract with the customer is 
discharged over time. The normal payment terms of the Company is 30 days from the date of invoice. 

2.18 Other income 

Other income is recognized on accrual basis. 

2.19 Taxation 

2.19.1 Current 

The current income tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the basis of 
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable 
in respect of previous years. 

The Companys income from energy sale is exempt from tax under clause 132, Part I, Second 
Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance (ITO) 2001. The income is also exempt from minimum tax on 
turnover under clause hA, Part IV, Second Schedule of the ITO. 

2.19.2 Deferred 

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for all temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts 
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to he applied 
to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will he 
available against which taxable temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realized. 

As majority of the Companys income is exempt from tax, no deferred tax has been icc 
Company. 
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2022 2021 

(Restatud) 

Rupees  

3.- PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Operating assets (note 31) 

Capital work-in-progress (note 3.3) 
152,488,711 163,912,226 

152,488,711 163,912,226 

3.1 Operating assets 

Plant and machinery 

Year ended December31 

Opening net book value 
Transfer from CWIP (notes 3.3 and 3.4) 

Depreciation expense (note 14) 

Net book value 

163,912,226 
171,267,092 

(11,423,515) (7,354,866) 

 

152,488,711 163,912,226 

 

   

As at December31 

Cost 171267,092 171,267,092 
Accumulated depreciation (18,778,381) (7,354,866) 
Net book value 152,488,711 163,912,226 

Annual rate of depreciation (%) 6.67 6.67 

  

3.2 There were no additions or disposals during the year. 

2021 Additions 2022 
(Restated) during the year 

Rupees  

3.3 Capital work-in-progress 
- Plant and machinery 

Procurement of equipment and 

Engineering and construction services 

Borrowing cost capitalized 

Amortization of transaction cost 

on long-term loan 

169,395,512 

1,770,321 

101,259 
171,267,092 

Transfer to operating assets (note 3.4) (171,267,092) 

  

    

    

3.4 During the prior year, the Company completed the construction of the solar power plant at 
and commenced commercial operations on May 11,2021, 
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4.  PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

2022 2021 

Rupees  

Prepayments 80,566 110,843 

Other receivable (note 4.'l) 59,139 654.191 
Security deposits 12,500 12,500 

152,205 777,534 

4.1 Other receivables amounting to Rs. 396000 (2021: Nil) have been written off during the year. 

2022 2021 
Rupees  

5.  TRADE DEBTS - considered good and secured 

In respect of: 
- Billed revenue 
- Un-billed revenue 

6,609875 10,090,470 
2,822,255 2,357,245 

 

9,432,130 12,447,715 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (note 5.2) (544,250) 

 

8,887,880 . 12,447,715 

5.1 These include receivables in respect of sale of electricity. The analysis of trade debts is as follows: 

2022 2021 
Rupees  

Neither past due nor impaired 
Past due but not impaired (note 5.1.1) 
Past due and impaired (note 5.2) 

5,850,081 5,338,653 
3,037,799 7,109,062 

544,250 - 

 

9,432,130 12.447,715 

5.1.1 The aging analysis of trade debts which are past due but not impaired is as follows: 

Upto 1 month 
More than 1 month 

2022 2021 
Rupees  

3,527,012 
3,037,799 3,582,050 

3,037,799 7,109,062 

5.2 As at December 31, 2022, trade debts aggregating to Rs. 544,250 (2021: nil) were deeiiiod to have 
been impaired and provided for. These have been outstanding for more than one year. The movrnnl 
in provision during the year is as follows: 

2022. 2021 
Rupees 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 
Add: Expected credit loss for the year 

Balance as at the end of the year 



Transaction Cost: 

Transaction cost to date 

AccurTiulated amortization 

Less: Current portion shown under curren 

2022 2021 
Rupees  

122,318,886 136,709,346 

(3,810,280) (3.810, 20() 

726,563 345.535 

(3,083,717) (3,404,745) 

119,235, 'I 69 133,244,601 

(14,390,460) (14,390,460) 
104,844,709 118,854.141 

A 

9. LONG-TERM LOAN - SECURED 

Long-term loan 

11 

6. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT 

This represents certificates of investment placed with Pak Oman Investment Company Limited 
(POICL) at rates ranging from 7.60% to 16.35% (2021: 7.60% to 8.75%) and maturing on various 
dates between 2 to 6 months. This also includes Rs. 11725,716 (2021: Rs. 10,588,896) placed under 
the long-term loan agreement from POICL under State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) Renewable Energy 
Scheme on roll-over basis for the tenure of the loan. 

2022 2021 
Rupees  

7. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Balance with bank in current account 

8. SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorized capital 

50000000 (2021: 50000000) ordinary shares 
of Rs. 10 each 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 

3720000 (2021: 3,720,000) ordinary shares 

of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash (note 8.1) 

8.1 Movement in issued, subscribed and paid up capital 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Nil (2021: 3,600,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10 

each issued at par as fully paid right shares 

Balance at the end of the year 

9,654,722 6685834 

500000,000 500,000000 

37,200,000 37200,000 

37,200,000 1,200,000 

36000,000 

37200000 37200000 

8.2 The Company has a single class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed incoiie The holders 
are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share et 
the meetings of the Company. All shares rank equauy with regard to the Company's residual assetr 

8.3 Under the Re-Term Finance Agreement with POICL, the Company is restricted from declaring or 
making payment of any dividend if any of the following occurs: 

- the Company is in non-compliance / breach of any of the financial covenants required to be met; 
- there is any Event of Default or Potential Event of Default; 
- the Company suffers net loss; 
- the Power Purchase Agreement stands terminated; or 
- the occurrence of a force majeure event. 



ACCRUED MARK-UP 

Accrued mark-up on: 

- long-term loan 

- payable to the Holding Company (note 

2022 2021 

Rupees 

1,524,796 1,760,367 

10,836,560 3,452,355 

12,361,356 0,212.722 

11. 
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Balance as at January 1 

2022 
Rupees 

133244,601 

2021 

Loan disbursed during the year - i36,/00,34C 

Transaction cost incurred during the year (3,810,28Ti) 
Amortization of transaction cost during the year 381,028 345,535 
Loan repaid during the year (14,390,460) 
Balance as at December 31 119,235,169 133,244,601 

9.2 The Company has obtained long-term loan from POICL under State Bank of Pakistan (SOP) 
Renewable Energy Scheme dated July 22, 2020, amounting to Rs. 136,709,346 to finance 80% of the 
project. The tenure of the loan is 10 years, carrying mark-up at the rate of 5% payable on quarterly 
basis. The principal amount is repayable in nineteen (19) semi-annual instalments commencing from 
February 1,2021. 

9.3 The loan is secured through hypothecation charge over the present and future fixed assets (excluding 
land and building) and assignment of receivables of the Company in favor of POICL. Transaction cost 
is amortized over the tenure of the loan. 

9.4 The Holding Company has provided a corporate guarantee amounting to Rs. 144,000,000 iii favou of 
POICL to secure the financing facility of the Company. 

9.5 As at year end, the Company has breached financial ratios (covenants) as specified cn clause S 1 

the Re-Term Finance Agreement (the Agreement) with POICL. Such breach fails under clause Oil 
(ii) of the Agreement where the Company has a period of 21 days to rectify the breach from the earlier 
of the date the Company receives notice from the lender or the Company becoming aware of the 
default. However, POICL has communicated waiver in respect of non-compliance with the financial 
ratios for the financial year 2022 upon undertaking by the Company to comply with them by June 30, 
2023. 

2022 2021 
Rupees 

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Creditors (note 10.1) 43,977,567 43,527,631 

Accrued liabilities (note 10.2) 592,187 303,243 

Other payable 1,334,016 207.754 

45,903,770 44030628 

10.1 Represents amount payable to Reon Energy Limited, the Holding Company, as at reportnq daw, 
under the procurement contract and engineering and construction services Contract for setting up soir 
power project and Operation & Maintenance contract for maintenance of solar power p!unL P 
includes amount payable to the Holding Company in respect of shared services provided to the 
Company. 

10.2 Includes an amount of Rs. 179,000 (2021:Nil) ri respect of shared office space by the holding 
company. 

9.1 

10. 
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This represents mark-up accrued at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 3% in respect of delayed payment 
of amount payable to the Holding Company under the Procurement Contract and Engineering and 
Construction Services contract and Operation & Maintenance contract and at 1% above the average 
borrowing rate of the Holding Company in respect of delayed payment of shared service cost payable. 

12. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

The Company has committed to generate and transmit 34353607 KwH of energy (2Q21: 36,111010 
KwH of energy) and pay its O&M contractor, Reon Energy Limited Rs. 73364047 (2021: 
Rs. 76495607) over the span of next thirteen years. 

REVENUE 

2022 

Rupees  

2021 

(Restated) 

Revenue (notes 13.1 and 13.2) 38,068,222 28,563,270 
Less: Advance income tax (1,672078) (1,227510) 
Less: Sales tax (5,288,382). (3,971,863) 
Less: Electricity duty (307,634) (231,326) 

30,800,128 23,132,571 

This denotes revenue in respect of energy sales to P&G. 

13.2 Includes un-billed revenue amounting to Rs. 2,822,256 (2021: 2,357,245) for December 2022 nvo!ce. 

COST OF REVENUE 

2022 

R ii pe es  

2021 

(R os te ted) 

Operation and maintenance expense (note 14,1) 3,404,719 2200,232 

Penalty on short delivery (note 14.2) 7,450,374 

Cost of units produced during testing phase - 1,491,131 

Salaries and allowances 293,706 212,599 

Depreciation (note 3.1) 11,423,515 7,354,866 

Insurance 194,729 110,845 

15,316669 18,820,054 

14.1 This represents charges in respect of O&M agreement with the Holding Company, 

14.2 This represents penalty imposed by P&G in 2021 for late commissioning of plant which 
short production of committed units. 

13.  

13.1 

14.  



2022 

Rupees 

2021 

1,682784 1678495 

745,045 820,743 

62,892 34,812 

168 2,398 

11,500 18,929 

383,584 247,670 

440,080 246,164 

442,500 350,250 

240,813 586,157 

4,009,366 3,985,618 

207,008 

150,000 73,710 

357,008 223.510 

26,576 24,160 

383,584 247,670 

1,799,973 656,985 

7,427,702 3,408,858 

6,334,756 4,435.856 

381.028 244,276 

396,904 94,315  
14,540,390 8,183,606 

2021 
(Resta ted) 

Rupees  

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 

There is no dilutive impact on the basic loss per share 

of the Company, which is based on: 

Loss for the year 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

Loss per share - basic and diluted 

18. 

15. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Salaries and allowances 

Rent 

Electricity, gas & water 

Printing & stationary 

Communication 

Auditor's remuneration (note 15.1) 

Fees and subscription 

Legal and professional expenses 

Others 

15.1 Auditor's remuneration 

Fee for: 

- audit of statutory financial statements 

- special certifications and other assurance services 

Reimbursement of expenses and taxes 

16. OTHER INCOME 

Interest income on short-term investment 

17. FINANCE COST 

Mark-up on: 

- payable to the Holding Company 

- long-term loan 

Amortization of transaction cost 

Bank charges (note 17.1) 

17.1 It includes Rs. 396,000 (2021: Nil) written off during the year. 

2022 

(2,332,566) (7,385,219) 

Number of shares 

3,720,000 3,503.014 

Rupees 

(0.63) 

F 
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2022 2021 
Rupees  

  

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

    

Cash and bank balances (note 7) 

Short-term investment (note 6) 

  

9,654,722 6,685,834 

1,524,796 1,760,367 

 

  

11,179518 8,446,201 

 

      

20. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 

The aggregate amounts charged during the year in respect of remuneration, including aU hc-refib o 

the chié executive, directors andexecutives of the Company areas f011ows: 

2022  2021 

Chief Executive Executives 
Chief 

Executive 

Rupees  

Executi'.'es 

  

Managerial remuneration 

Number of persons  

799,183 293,641 754,365 464,809 

1 4 1 2 

20.1 This denotes amount charged by the Holding Company in respect of shared remuneration of Chief 
Executive Officer and Executives. 

20.2 No amount has been paid or charged ri respect of any directors of the Company. The number of 
directors are two (2) [2021: two (2)]. 

2022 2021 

Rupees....... 

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 

21,1 Financial instruments as per the statement of financial position 

- At amortized cost 

Cash and bank balances 9,654,722 6685,834 

Trade debts 8,887,880 12,447,715 

Short-term investment 22,145,475 12,352308 

Security deposits 12,500 12,500 

Other receivables 59,139 
40,759,716 31,508,357 

Financial liabilities as per the statement of financiaIposition 

- At amortized cost 

Long-term loan 119,235169 133,244'0i 

Trade and other payables 45,903,770 44,038,628 

Accrued mark-up 12,361,356 5,212722 
177,500,295 182,495,551 

22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

21.2 

in an ardcr!y 
assets 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabSt 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The carryin 
and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values 
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Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without 
any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a 
transaction on adverse terms. 

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, 
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk 
management programme focuses on having cost effective funding as well as to manage financial risk 
to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders. Risk management is 
carried out by the Company's management under policies approved by the Board of Directors 

a) Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, nteret iot 
and equity prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings ci hnancni! 
instruments. 

(i) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no significant 
currency risk on obligations therefore, the Company's income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

(ii) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has a long-term loan (note 
9) at fixed rate of 5% which exposes the Company to fair value interest rate risk However, 
changes in rates do not affect the Company's performance as the loan is carieci at amortized 
cost. 

(iii) Other price risk 

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial 
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from 
currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments 
traded in the market. The Company is not currently exposed to price risk as it has no financal 
instruments which are sensitive to price. 

b) Credit Risk 

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter parties fail to discharge 
their obligations. 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions and trade debts. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of financial assets. The credit 
risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit 
ratings as follows: 

Name of bank Sating agency 

 

Ratinc,s 

Long Term 

 

Short term 

VIS Credit Rating 
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Company 

JS Bank Limited p 
A-1+ 
A-14 

AAc 
AA- 
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Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations 
associated with its financial liabilities The Company s liquidity management invoIvs piojecti ij 
cashflows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these by maintaining 
sufficient cash and marketable securities and availability of funding through an adequate amount 
of credit facilities. Further, the Company monitors balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal 
and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans. 

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity. groLipings based 
on the remaining period at the reporting date to contractual maturity dates. The amounts 
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

2022 
Maturity Maturity Total 

Particulars upto after 
oneyear oneyear 

R up a as  

Long-term loan 20,189,025 
Trade and other payahles 45903,770 
Accrued mark-up 12,361,356 

78,454,151 128,620.456 207074.607 

2021 
Maturity Maturity 

Particulars upto after Total 
one year one year 

Rupees  

Long-term loan 20,866163 144,867,360 165,733,523 
Trade and other payables 44,038,628 44,038,628 
Accrued mark-up 5,212,722 5,212,722 

70.117.513 144,867,360 214,984,873 

24. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to conlinue as 
a going concern in order to provide return for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure 
to minimize the cost of capital. The Company manages its capital structure and may make 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to rnainiai r 

capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payouts to shareholders. 

Under the Re-Term Finance Agreement with Pak Oman Investment Company Limited, the Company 
is required to comply with certain financial ratios. 

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following 
gearing ratio: 

2022 2021 

Rupees  

Total borrowings 119,235,169 133,244,601 

Total equity 21,723,568 24,056,134 

Gearing ratio 

128,620,456 1'i8,B09.48 
i5 003,77) 
12761.356 
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2022 2021 

KwH  

27. AVERAGE ENERGY OUTPUT AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 

Average Energy Output (annual) 

Actual Production 

2,909,049 2,922371 

3,045,904 1,854,607 

27.1 Output produced by the plant is dependent on the plant's efficiency and higher solar irradiation tall. 

28. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, foi the 
purpose of comparison the effects of which are not material. 

29. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 
of the Company. 

 

by the Board of Directors 

 

  

Chief Executive Dire 
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Applicant profile 

Grid Edge Private Limited 

The applicant Grid Edge Private Limited is power purchase agreement arm of Reon Energy 

Limited. 

The electricity market is changing fast. Technology advancements, evolving consumer 

preferences, and new policies are leading to a surge of adoption of solar, energy storage, 

microgrids, electric vehicles, and other new energy technologies. These distributed energy 

resources are forcing new models to rethink how the energy market works, consequently, new 

models for customer energy management, grid infrastructure and electricity market design are 

arising to address these changes. 

The Company, has been incorporated to bring innovation in the ertergyrnarket by providing 

power purchase agreements via renewable technologies to private sector and public-sector 

customers in Pakistan by setting up Solar PV plants on the site of the customer by oliedng hybrid 

or grid tied solutions. 

This allows savings on transmission infrastructures to the government of Pakistan and allows 

customers to take advantage of cheaper renewable power without having to ijndertii<e 

expensive capex on its own accord as asking clients to undertake expensive capex on technology, 

which has capacity risk, has inhibited the growth of this industry in Pakistan even with a e 

great effort of NEPRA and Ministry of Water and Power to unlock the value of Solar in 
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Profile of Experience of Applicant 

Mujtaba Haider Khan 

Chief Executive Officer 

Mujtaba is CEO of Reon Energy Limited and Grid Edge since 2016 and has also served as the Head 

of Strategy for Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited. Before that, he worked as the F-lead ul 

Strategy and Transformation for BT Fleet, a wholly owned subsidiary of British Telecom in 

London. Mujtaba has led BT in a range of commercial and transformation roles including as 

Project Director in Global Services Division and as the Head of Procurement for the Ul< wide fiber 

rollout program. Mujtaba holds his BS in Computer Systems Engineering and an MBA from 

Cranfield School of Management. His area of expertise includes Growth Strategy, Start-up, and 

Cost Transformation. 

Inam-ur Rehman 

Director 

Inani ur Rahman is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Dawood Hercules Corporation, In the 

recent past, he has led the renewable businesses of the group as CEO of Reon Energy Limited and 

has set up a 50MW wind power plant Tenaga Generasi Limited. With more than 25 years of 

professional experience Mr. Rahman has expertise across a spectrum of industries including 

renewable energy, foods, textiles, fashion & apparel, lifestyle, and business consulting. His 

present portfolio of directorships includes Engro Corporation Limited and Cyan Limited. He has 

earlier also served as a director on the Boards of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, Dawood 

Lawrencepur Limited, Sind Engro Coal Mining Company, Laraib Energy Limited, SACH 

International Limited, and Pebbles Private Limited. 

Sha hid Hamid Pracha 

Chairman of Reon 

Shahid previously served as Chief Executive Officer of the Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited, 

and Dawood Foundation. Prior to joining the Dawood Group, he spent a major part of his career 

with ICI Plc's Pakistan operations in a variety of senior roles including a period of international 

secondment with the parent company in UlK. He is also a founding member of the Pakistan 

Society for Human Resource Managers and previously served as the first CEO of the Karachi 

Education Initiative, the sponsoring entity of the Karachi School of Business & Leadership. 

Shahid holds a degree in electrical engineering from the University of Salfor 
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Abdul Samad Dawood 

Director 

Samad is a graduate in Economics from University College London, UK and a Certified Director 

of Corporate Governance from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. He is Chairman 

of Engro Foods Limited and Director on the Boards of Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited, 

Dawood Lawrencepur Limited, The Hub Power Company Limited, Engro Corporation Limited 

and Engro Fertilizers Limited. 

Samad is a member of Young Presidents' Organization, Pakistan Chapter. 

Syed Dayab Hussain 

Project Manager 

Dayab has been working at company for 8 years. He started his career as application Engineer 

and managed different scale of projects as project manager. His core areas of expertise ae 

integration of solar with different sources and study its impacts on practical load profiles at 

different industrial sectors. His current responsibilities are evaluating large scale Solar projects 

up to 10MW from technical point of view and compile complete technical work packages for 

submitting applications for GL and PPAs. Dayab is has also led the design and engineering for 

SECMC 5MW Solar PV plant and will also be heading the same project. 

Salman Saeed Khalili 

Vice President Sanking and Telecom 

Salman has over a decade of experience in the global telecom industry. His last role was with 

LCC MENA as Regional Manager — Strategic Initiatives. Salman's area of expertise involves plan, 

design, and execution of customized engineering solutions, products and services for telecom 

towers. Salman's on-going work in energy transformation has created extensive savings in 

operational expenditure and carbon for multiple networks. He is the first to introduce Energy as 

a Service Model in Pakistan. Salman holds a bachelor's in computer engineering from Bahria 

University, Karachi, Pakistan. 

Saqib Zaidi 

Head of Operations 

Saqib has over a decade of experience in digital transformation & operations strategy, change 

management, and customer-centric process design & implementation. He has previously 

worked with Siemens for 6 years and other renowned organizatons in the middle e 

holds a bachelor's degree from NED University and a postgraduate degree from ti 

of Liverpool. 
' 1 

'•(.\ . 
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Sana Rizwan 

Quality, Health, Safety and Environment Specialist 

Sana is one of the pioneer female advocates of renewable energy in Pakistan and has been 

associated with the renewable energy industry since 2010. She started her career as an Energy 

Auditor and later went onto becoming Pakistan's first female solar engineer. Her milestone 

projects at Reon include leading the delivery for solar at 180 plus telecom towers across region 

and for one of Pakistan's largest distributed captive power project at Fauji Cement. 

Sana holds a bachelor's and master's from NED University of Engineering and Technology, 

Karachi. 

Zohaib Naeem 

Product Manager 

Zohaib holds over decade of experience in Research & Development. He has worked on 

diversified products ranging from power electronics, SCADA, Automation, renewable systems & 

software platforms and has successfully launched products in multiple domains including 

telecom, and energy. His expertise includes new product development, loT and current 

solutions optimization. 

Zohaib holds a master's degree in Engineering Managernen and a Bachelor's in Elec 

from NED University; Karachi. 
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PROSPECTUS 

A brief introduction of the applicant 

Grid Edge Limited 

The applicant Grid Edge Private Limited is power purchase agreement arm of Reon Energy 

Limited 

The electricity market is changing fast. Technology advancements, evolving consumer 

preferences, and new policies are leading to a surge of adoption of solar, energy storage, 

microgrids, electric vehicles, and other new energy technologies. These distributed energy 

resources are forcing new models to rethink how the energy market works, consequently, new 

models for customer energy management, grid infrastructure and electricity market design are 

arising to address these changes. 

The Company, has been incorporated to bring innovation in the energy market by providing 

power purchase agreements via renewable technologies to private sector and public-sector 

customers in Pakistan by setting up Solar PV plants on the site of the customer by offering 

hybrid or grid tied solutions. 

This allows savings on transmission infrastructures to the government of Pakistan and allows 

customers to take advantage of cheaper renewable power without having to undertake 

expensive capex on its own accord as asking clients to undertake expensive capex on 

technology, which has capacity risk, has inhibited the growth of this industry in Pakistan ev 

with all the great effort of NEPRA and Ministry of Water and Power to unlock the value 

in Pakistan 

I 
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Salient Features 

Project Rationale: 

On site affordable energy production from solar plant to partially meet energy needs 

Sustainable energy source in line with triple bottom line impact for client 

Capex free deployment under power purchase agreement for 15 years 

Reliance on localized energy sources and hedge for the term of the contract for 15 

years 

Technology: 

Solar based Power Generation System, civil structures, and auxiliaries. 

- Complete Solar Based Power Generating Panels with their protection, 

instrumentation, monitoring, control and synchronizing panels with existing power 

sources 

All technical parameters covered including but limited to Net Efficiency, Net Output, 

Power Plant Availability, Construction of Power Plant Building including all facilities as 

well as all related sub-systems such as: 

o Plant Ventilation and air-conditioning in office and similar areas, 

o Electrification and lighting systems 

o Emergency Lighting System, etc. 

o Fire Protection System 

The installed system shall meet applicable codes and standards. Safety signage and 

labelling should be mounted on the system as required 

All Solar Panels shall be made of Crystalline Silicon solar cells 

All the electrical installations and wiring for the PV system in accordance with codes 

and standards 

Project Location: 

The Solar Plant will be located within the Crescent Textile factory in Faisa 

  

  



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Operations and Maintenance: 

The project also includes 24/7 O&M of the complete Power Plant including all its related 

systems and equipment. The O&M services shall be carried out for a period of 15 years (180 

Months) and shall include but not be limited to the following items and their related costs, 

inclusive of all importation and local charges, duties, taxes, etc. 

Provision of all manpower as duly approved by the Company. 

- Provision of all consumable material and parts. 

- Provision of all routine and preventive maintenance parts. (Bidders are required to 

provide a priced list). 

Full costs relating to any repairs and replacements due to defects in the or break down 

of the equipment and systems strictly in accordance with OEMs requirements. The 

- cost shall also include all dismantling, handling, shipment, etc. 

Provision of all emergency spare parts as per the recommendations of the OEMs or as 

directed by the Company. (Bidders are required to provide a priced Ii. 

uJ -- ,.rr't, 1 .% 



This system will help curtailing CO2 emissions by 2,500 

tonnes a year. A life cycle assessment of the CO2 

produced by solar PV is 40g per kWh as opposed to 

700g CO2 per kWhfor dieselfu&/gridso 

Feasibility & Financing: 

The Project will cost approximately cost PKR 240 Million funded through 25% equity and 75% 

debt through SBP Green Financing 

Environmental Benefits: 
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FEASIBILITY STUDY 

A brief introduction of the applicant 

Grid Edge Private Limited 

The applicant Grid Edge Private Limited is power purchase agreement arm of Reon Energy 

Limited. 

The electricity market is changing fast. Technology advancements, evolving consumer 

preferences, and new policies are leading to a surge of adoption of solar, energy storage, 

microgrids, electric vehicles, and other new energy technologies. These distributed energy 

resources are forcing new models to rethink how the energy market works, consequently, new 

models for customer energy management, grid infrastructure and electricity market design are 

arising to address these changes. 

The Company, has been incorporated to bring innovation in the energy market by providing 

power purchase agreements via renewable technologies to private sector and public-sector 

customers in Pakistan by setting up Solar PV plants on the site of the customer by offering hybrid 

or grid tied solutions. 

This allows savings on transmission infrastructures to the government of Pakistan and allows 

customers to take advantage of cheaper renewable power without having to undertake 

expensive capex on its own accord as asking clients to undertake expensive capex on technology, 

which has capacity risk, has inhibited the growth of this industry in Pakistan even with 

great effort of NEPRA and Ministry of Water and Power to unlock the value of Solarii 

GRID EDGE 
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Introduction to Solar: 

Solar power is the conversion of energy from sunlight into electricity, either directly using 

photovoltaics (PV), indirectly using concentrated solar power, or a combination. 

Concentrated solar power systems use lenses or mirrors and tracking systems to focus a large 

area of sunlight into a small beam. Photovoltaic cells convert light into an electric current 

using the photovoltaic effect. 

Photovoltaics were initially solely used as a source of electricity for small and medium-sized 

applications, from the calculator powered by a single solar cell to remote homes powered by 

an off-grid rooftop PV system. 

As the cost of solar electricity has fallen, the number of grid-connected solar PV systems has 

grown into the millions and utility-scale solar power stations with hundreds of megawatts are 

being built. Solar PV is rapidly becoming an inexpensive, low-carbon technology to harness 

renewable energy from the Sun. 

The productivity of solar power in a region depends on solar irradiance, which varies through 

the day and is influenced by latitude and climate. 

The locations with highest annual solar irradiance lie in the arid tropics and subtropics. Deserts 

lying in low latitudes usually have few clouds and can receive sunshine for more thanten hours 

a day. These hot deserts form the Global Sun Belt circling the world. This belt consists of 

extensive swathes of land in Northern Africa, Southern Africa, Southwest East, 

and Australia, as well as the much smaller deserts of North and South 

GRO 
jep 
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Solar Potential in Pakistan: 

There is an increasing demand for power in the domestic, commercial, and industrial sectors 

as Pakistan's popilation and its economy continue to expand. Currently, electricity 

consumption is severely suppressed by increasing tariffs, supply shortfalls and infrequent load 

shedding, and there also exist significant levels of latent demand in the country as rising 

income levels allow more people to switch to electricity from using traditional fuels or captive 

power. 

Pakistan's per capita electricity consumption is currently significantly lower in comparison to 

other countries in a similar development stage, and much below that of OECD countries. Per 

capita electricity consumption is strongly correlated with the human development index 

(HDl), and the current trends of rising incomes and energy supplies, falling poverty levels, and 

increasing economic activity are predicted to lead to rapid increases in per capPa 

consumption rates in Pakistan, creating a healthy demand for additional power generation. 

Even with the projected surplus in power generation capacity by 2025, there will still be 

sufficient economic feasibility for small and medium-sized (1-50 MW) renewable energy-

based power projects in the Pakistan, especially those located near remote and isolated load 

centers and extremities of the grid network or based on bilateral bulk contracts or for 

augmenting peak supplies on the grid. The viability of such projects will be further enhanced 

by the continued decline in technology prices and the emphasis by the government on 

indigenous energy resources that also help the country meet its environmental ob - 

reduce carbon emissions. 
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The type and details of the services 
proposed 

Project Rationale: 

- On site affordable energy production from solar plant to partially meet energy needs 

- Sustainable energy source in line with triple bottom line impact for client 

- Capex free deployment under power purchase agreement for 15 years 

- Reliance on localized energy sources and hedge for the term of the contract for 15 

years 

Technology: 

Solar based Power Generation System, civil structures, and auxiliaries. 

Complete Solar Based Power Generating Panels with their proiectioi, 

instrumentation, monitoring, control and synchronizing panels with existing powor 

sources 

All technical parameters covered including but limited to Net Efficiency, Net Output, 

Power Plant Availability, Construction of Power Plant Building including all facilities as 

well as all related sub-systems such as: 

o Plant Ventilation and air-conditioning in office and similar areas, 

o Electrification and lighting systems 

o Emergency Lighting System, etc. 

o Fire Protection System 

The installed system shall meet applicable codes and standards. Safety signage and 

labelling should be mounted on the system as required 

All Solar Panels shall be made of Crystalline Silicon solar cells 

All the electrical installations and wiring for the PV system in accordance with codes 

and standards 

Project Location: 

The Solar Plant will be located within the Crescent Textile factory in Faisala 

(c 



Feasibility & Financing: 

The Project will cost approximately cost PKR 240 Million funded through 25% equity and 75% 

debt through SBP Green Financing 

Environmental Benefits: 

This system will help curtailing CO2 emissions by 2,500 

tonnes a year. A life cycle assessment of the CO2 

produced by solar PV is 40g per kWh a 

700g CO2 per kwh for diesel fuel/grid so 
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Crescent Textile mills 

LOCATION MAPS, SITE MAPS, 

Location Map: 

The Solar Plant will be located at Crescent Textile Mills, Sargodha Road, District Faisalabad, 

Punjab, Pakistan 
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TECHNOLOGY, SIZE OF PLANT, 

NUMBER OF UNITS 
I Technical Summary: 

I
Monocrystalline 530W Solar Modules with efficiency 20.75% are used in the design 

110 KW grid connected solar inverters, 480V three phase, 98,7% have been considered 

System will be connected to the auxiliary load of the Existing factory 

I Maximum AC output of the system is assumed to be 2600 KW 

10 Acre Rooftop space required for Solar installation 

Output of the system is based on instantaneous Irradiation values of Solar Energy 

1 
I Bill of Materials: 

S. No. Components Qty (NQ.)  
6512 1 Moriocrystalline Solar Modules 530W 

2 Grid Connected Solar Inverters 110KW 3 Phase 26 

LV Panel lP42 MCCB 5 1 
Energy Generation: 

[S.NO. 

1 

EFficiency Parameters 
82.3% Performance Ratio of the System 

2 Capacity Utilization Factor 15.9% 

3 Energy Generation Units 4.2 Million Kw 
T _.',l 
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Technology & Number of Units: 

S.No. Parameters 

1 Technology Solar Photovoltaic (SPy) 

2 Size of Plant 3.00 MW 

3 Solar Modules Monocrystalline Solar Modules 530W Tier 1 

4 nverter 110kw Grid Connected Inverter 

5 LV Panel lP42- 400,1000,1200,1600A MCCB 

6 

Single Line Diagram: 
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Fuel Type 
- Solar Energy based Plant, no fossil fuel will be used for the generation. 

Emission Values 
- There will be "NO" carbon emission by the generation of Solar Energy. 

- This system will help curtailing CO2 emissions by 2,500 tons a year. A life cycle 

assessment of the CO2 produced by solar PV is minimal at 40g per kwh as opposed 

to 700g CO2 per kWh for diesel fuel/grid sources 

Cooling Water Source 
- Not Applicable for Solar Energy Plant. 

Interconnection with National 

Grid 
Not Applicable: Powergenerated is to be cnsumed on sit 



Infrastructure 
The location is within the premises of existing unit of Crescent Textile Mills, Faisalabad 

to produce green energy by using solar panels and is easily accessible by all traffic. 

All utilities (electricity, water, boarding lodging and fuel) is readily available on site. 

Project cost, information 

regarding sources and 

amounts of equity, debt. 

Feasibility & Financing: 

The Project will cost approximately PKR 240 Million funded through 25% equity and 75% debt 

through SBP Green Financing 
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Project C.crn:rnence.rnent & 

Completion 
This project will be completed in a period of 6 months after issuance of Generatioi 

License. Major activities of project involve Detailed Engineering Design, Procurement of 

Local and Imported Equipment, and Construction involving Civil, Electrical, and 

mechanical works. Major Milestones are: 

S. No. Malor Milestone Timeline 

1 Detailed Engineering Design 1.0 month 

2 Procurement 1.5 months 

3 Construction 2.5 months 

4 Commissioning and Testing 1.0 month 
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System Studies, load flow, 

short circuit, stability, 

reliability 4 
- System Studies: 

- Not Applicable (MV scope excluded) 



Plant Characteristics 
Generation Voltage: 

Solar Power plant will be generating AC power at Low voltage levels of 400V 4W~PE system 

and to be synced with existing generator/FESCO at Low voltage level. 

Power Factor & Frequency 

CTL solar power plant is using solar grid connected string Inverters of 110KW each to covert 

DC power of solar panels to Alternating Power. Grid connected inverters have the 

functionality to adapt the power factor of existing diesel genset and grid. The range of Power 

Factor can be set from 0 - 1 leading /lagging, making it suitable for absorbing or delivering 

reactive power. The nominal power factor for lnverters is 0.995. Nominal Frequency of 

generation is 50Hz. 

Automatic Generation Control & Ramp Rate: 

The Automatic Sustainable Controller (DEIF ASC-4) is a controller designed to serve as a ink 

between sustainable power plant (Solar) and genset plants, combining them so they work as 

one common hybrid system. The concept of the ASC-4 is to maximize sustainable power 

penetration, depending on the total load demand to the hybrid without compromising 

constraints such as minimum genset load demand. 

The ASC-4 Solar is the variant designed for PV control, and it enables integrationof PV power 

and genset power. The PV plant is handled as a base loading power- and reactive power 

provider, not as a voltage- and frequency provider. Therefore, the ASC-4 only operates the PV 

in case either utility or a genset constitutes a grid to which the PV can dispatch power. 

Ramp rate of inverters is the function of MPPT algorithm. Normally solar power is set to ramp 

up or ramp down the generation within the period of 5-10 seconds from 0 - 100 percent. 

Ramp rate can be adjusted according to the behavior of gensets over loading and unl 

due to Solar power variations. 
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Control, metering, 

instrumentation, and 

protection 

Automatic Generation Control & Ramp Rate: 

The Automatic Sustainable Controller (DEIF ASC-4) is a controller designed to serve as a link 

between sustainable power plant (Solar) and genset plants, combining them so they work as 

one common hybrid system. The concept of the ASC-4 is to maximize sustainable power 

penetration, depending on the total load demand to the hybrid without compromising 

constraints such as minimum genset load demand. 

The ASC-4 Solar is the variant designed for PV control, and it enables integration of PV power 

and genset power. The PV plant is handled as a base loading power- and reactive power 

provider, not as a voltage- and frequency provider. Therefore, the ASC-4 only operates the PV 

in case either utility or a genset constitutes a grid to which the PV can dispatch power. 

Ramp rate of inverters is the function of MPPT algorithm. Normally solar power is set to ramp 

up or ramp down the generation within the period of 5-10 seconds from 0 — 100 percent. 

Ramp rate can be adjusted according to the behavior of gensets over loading and unloading 

due to Solar power variations. 

Metering and Protection: 

The solar will be terminated at LT against each respective building. The Solar Panels are 

installed on the roof of factory building and are terminated at the 415V busbar. 

Sensitivity Class for meter is O.5s with bidirectional 4 quadrant calculations algorithm. 

Features including, total import and export units can be extracted over the period, TOD 

calculations, MDI, active and reactive power calculations, Et al. 

The following Over and l.Inder voltage protections are present in the syst 

Short Circuit protections 

Earth Fault detection 

Over current protection 
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Efficiency Parameters 
PV power Plant efficiency can be judged per its performance ratio, expressed as a percentage. 

This ratio compares a plant's actual energy production to its theoretical energy-generating 

potential and describes how efficient a PV power plant is in converting sunlight incident on 

the PV array into AC energy delivered to the utility grid. AS per IEC definition, Performance 

Ratio defines as. 

Z1 Z3 
Performance Ratio = ± 

..Z2 Z4 

Where, 

Zi = Accumulated electricity generated during testing period (kwh) 

U = Total system installed capacity (kWp) 

Z3 = Accumulated irradiation during testing period (Wh/m2) 

Z4 Intensity of irradiance under STC condition = 1,000W/m2 

Energy Generation: 

S. No. Efficiency Parameters 

1 Performance Ratio of the System 82.3% 

2 Capacity Utilization Factor 15.9% 
4.2 Million 3 Energy Generation Units 
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ECONOMIC ANALYSIS 

- lEE and NOC from Environment Agency (Already submitted) 

The environmental impact of the facility, 

system or project: 

This system will help curtailing CO2 emissions by 25OO 

tonnes a year. A life cycle assessment of the CO2 

produced by solar PV is 40g per kWh as opposed to 
700g CO2  per kWh for diesel fuel/grid sources. 
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC 
POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY 

AFFIDAVIT 

I, Mujtaba Haider Khan, Chief Executive Officer of Grid Edge Limited, being the duly authorized 
representative of the Company, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that Grid Edge Private Lim ted 
GEPL has been granted generation license under the NEPRA Act for Crescent Textile Limited 
(CTL). The license number assigned is SGC/162/2022. This Generation License is the only active 
license GEPL holds in FESCO territory. 

Grid Edge affirms that all the infoniiation provided in this affidavit is true and accurate and is willing 
to provide any additional documentation or answer any queries related to this affidavit upon request. 

 

 

Verification 

Verified on oath at Karachi on 19° Jutie 2023 that the contents of the above affidavit arc true and 
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

 

  



Authorized 
Statement 



GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

Authorized Statement 

Date: 2O' June 2O23 

BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC 
POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY 

I, Mujtaba Haider Khan, Chief Executive Officer Grid Edge Limited (the Company). being ilie dik' 

authorized representative of the Company, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that GEPL has at 

been refused any Generation License nor any is pending with NEPRA, to date. 
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Mujtaba Haider Kha 

Chief Executive Offi 

Dawood Centre, MT. Khan Road, Karachi-75950, Pakistan 
Telephone No.: 021-35632200 Fax No.: 021-35633970 



GRID EDGE (PRIVATE) LIMJTE 

Extract of the Board of Directors Resolution 

Held on September 3, 2018 

I, Mujtaba Haider Khan, Chief Executive of Grid Edge (Private) Limited, hereby certify that the 

following Resolution was passed by the Board of Directors on September 3, 2018. 

"RESOLVED that the Company shall proceed with all acts necessary to comply with the legal and 

regulatoy requirements in relation to its business objects and activities. 

FURTHER RESOLVED that Mr. Mujtaha Haider Khan, Chief Executive Officer has been duJy 

authorized in file; (i) an application for grant of Generation License; (ii) any other clarification 

submission application petition or document in support thereof; (iii) to make any oral or written 

representations on behalf of the Company before the National Electric Power P'watr 

Authority and any other body, organization, department judicial and quasi-judicial body in 

relation to the aforesaid filings and to do all other acts, deeds, things and matters as may be 

deemed expedient in giving effect to the aforesaid resolution. 

FURTHER RESOLVED that Mr. Mujtaba Haider Khan, ChIef Executive Officer may further delegate 

the aforesaid powers, in writing, to one or more persons, as deemed expedient from time to 

time." 

Certifiéd TruCopy 

1 ,  

Mujtaba )ider Khan 

Chief Executive  

tdEdge 

Dated: September 7, 2018 

Dawood Centre, M.T. Khan Road, Karachi-75950, Pakistan 

Telephone No.: 021-35632200 Fax No.: 021-35633970 
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I BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC 
POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY 

I Verification 
DEPONENT 

1 
\'eried on oath at Karachi on I 9nh  June  2023 that the contents of' the above affidavit Iran and 
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief, 

AFFIDAVIT 

I. Mujtaba Haider Khan, Chief Executive Officer of Grid Edge Limited, being the duly authorized 
representative of the Company, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that the contents of' the 
accompanying petition/application dated I 9th  June, 2023 including all supporting documents are Irne 
and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that nothing has been concealed 

I also affirm that all further documentation and information to be provided by me in connection with 
the accompanying petition shall be true to the best of' my knowledge and belief. 
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SCHEDULE-Ill  

The Location, Size (i.e. Capacity in MW), Type of Technology, 

Interconnection Arrangements, Technical Limits, Technical/Functional 

Specifications and other details specific to the Generation Facilities of 

the Licensee are described in this Schedule. 

Relevant feeder maps Number of consumers and expected load 

(I). No. of Feeders Two (02) 

(ii). Length of Each Feeder (Meter) 500-650 meter 

(I''). 
Length of Each Feeder to each 

consumer 
-do- 

(iv).  

In respect of all the Feeders, describe 

the property (streets, farms, Agri land, 

etc.) through, under or over which 

they pass right up to the premises of 

customer, whether they cross-over, 

The underground cable supplying to 

BPC from the generation facility will 

be located on private property owned 

by BPC 

(v).  

Whether owned by GE, Consumer or 

DlSCO-(deal with each Feeder 

Separately) 

(a). 
If owned by SEPCO, 

particulars of contractual 

arrangement 

N/A 

(b) 
Operation and maintenance 

responsibility 

for each feeder 

By BPC 

(vi).  

Whether connection with network of 

KE exists (whether active or not)- If 

yes, provide details of connection 

arrangements (both technical and 

contractual) 

Yes- B3(14)T consumers of FESCO 
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Any other network information 

deemed relevant for disclosure to or NA 

consideration of the Authority. 

Consumer class/category, sub-category on the basis of sanctioned load and  

voltage level  

(i). No. of Consumers Two (02) 

Location of consumers (distance 

and/or identity of premises) 

Crescent Textile Mil's Limited Unit No-

I & Unit No-Il, Sargodha Road, 

Noorpur, District Faisalabad, in the 

Province of Punjab 

Contracted Capacity and Load Factor 

for consumer 3.451 MW 10-15% 

(iv). 

Specify Whether 

(a).  

The consumer is an 

Associate undertaking of 

the GE -If yes, specify 

percentage ownership of 

equity; 

No 

(b).  There are common 

directorships: 

No 

i c,. Either can exercise influence 

or control over the other. 
No 

(v). 

Specify nature of contractual 

Relationship 

'a' Between each consumer and 

GE 

Licensee will construct, own and 
. 

operate the solar generation facilities 

and provide electricity to BPC. 

(b). Consumer and KE. 

Yes Existing Consumer of FESCO 

with Sanctioned Load of 4.75 MW & 

4.90 MW 

(vi) 

Any other network information 

deemed relevant for disclosure to or 

consideration of the Authority. 

NA 
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Procurement Plan for meeting expected loads (including own generation 

and/or long term and short-term PPAs, as the case may be)  

Grid Edge has signed a contract with Crescent Textile limited to Supply Electricity for its 

ownconsumption under 15 years contract. The procurement plan is agreed under the 

contractual agreement (attached). 
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Tariff categories of consumer classes to be served 

Consumer Tariff Category 

Yes Existing Consumer of FESCO 

with Sanctioned Load of 4.75 MW & 

4.90 MW 
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Demand and consumption pattern on different time periods 

The monthly energy charge will be charged at a rate of Solar Tariff on fixed installment method 

System Size — 3,000 KW 

Degradation Allowed per year = 0.7% (maximum) / annum. Prior to the commencement of e'ach 

Operating Year, the Supplier, shall provide the actual degradation for the System in the previous 

Operating Year and which would be applicable in the coming Operating Year. Other than the second 

Operating Year specified above, the Supplier shall not be entitled to a year-to-year degradation of 

more than 0.7% from the previous Operating Year. 

The cumulative Degradation over a period of the Term of the Agreement shall not be more than 0.7% 

on a cumulative basis. 

The values of the Guaranteed Energy Output shall be adjusted and reduced according to the 

degradation factor notified by the Supplier in terms of the above paragraph. 

Supplier shall provide forecast at the start of each Operating Year; on similar monthly variation as 

above 

Estimated Production during the term: 

Period 
Annual Committed Generation & Annual 

Committed Consumption (Gwh) 

Year 1 4250 

Year 2 4220 

Year 3 

Year 4 4.161 

Year 5 4.132 

Year 6 4.103 

Year 7 4.075 

YearS 4.046 

Year 9 4.018 

Year 10 

, 

3.990 

Year 11 w 3.962 
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Year 12 3.934 

Year 13 3.906 

Year 14 3,879 

Year 15 3852 

Procurement Plan for meeting expected loads (including own generation  

and/or long term and short-term PPAs, as the case may be)  

N/A 

12-month projections on expected load, number of consumers and expected 

sale of units for each consumer category 

Total number of consumers are 2, 

Crescent Textile Mills Limited Unit No-I & Unit No.-ll, Sargodha Road, Noorpur, District 

Faisalabad, in the Province of Punjab. 

The COD of plant was achieved on 1st January 2023. 
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The total generation units that have been supplied.to CTL areas folio 

Months Units Sold MWH 

January 160.1 

February 194.32 

March 355.54 

April 422.11 

May 437.09 

Projection for next months: 

Projection for next 12 months 
Units to be Sold 
MWH 

May 397 

June 413 

July 393 

August 390 

September 386 

October 367 

November 348 

December 331 
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5-year Investment Plan indicating schemes/models/framework for undertaking 

supply of electric power (including frameworks for providing non- 

discriminatory services and acqwsiton/sale of assets in relevant service 

territories)  

N/A 

Consumer Service Manual  

Proposed service territory: 

The location is within the premises of existing unit of Crescent Textile Mills, Faisalabad 

to produce green energy by using solar panels and is easily accessible by all traffic. 

All utilities (electricity, water, boarding lodging and fuel) is readily available on 

site. 

Billing and collection procedures (including provisions for remote metering): 

GRID EDGE raises Invoices by end of each month to the client. The client can verily die 

generation units against which the invoices are raised by checking through energy meters or 

online portal. The rate against which the units are being charged has been agreed with the 

client through contract. Once the invoice is Sent to the client; they deposit the amount in 

the bank account shared by GRID EDGE withing the next 

Ability to access consumer metering systems and other services/equipment: 

Grid Edge has installed 4 energy meters at the site. The energy produced can be verified by 

bothparties through online portal as well where the total generated units are being 

displayed. 

Emergency provisions and protocols 

Emergency response plan (ERP) 

Purpose  

To describe responsibilities in preparation for, response to and recovery from any reasonably 

foreseeable incident. 

Priorities  

Secure the Health and Safety of all personnel involved Minimize any impact on t 

environment Minimize any impact on property and assets. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

(For events deemed to be major, CUSTOMER may be obliged, by its responsibilities under its 

Agreements with the Government, to assume control of emergency response activities. Ir 



These circumstances the CUSTOMER Representative shall clearly advise GRID EDGE that 

CUSTOMER is assuming control and the GRID EDGE Project Manager will work under 
CUSTOMER 

Instruction). 

For emergency response activities managed by GRID EDGE, key roles and responsibilities are 
Detailed below. 

Emergency Response Team Leader (Proiect Manager)  
The ERT Leader shall carry overall responsibility for GRID EDGE emergency response 

execution. 

Key responsibilities shall include: 

• Providing leadership and direction in the event of an emergency. 

• Ensuring that emergency response planning, preparedness and execution is consistent 

With the requirements of CUSTOMER. 

• Ensuring that appropriate emergency response teams are defined and prepared for the 

Various emergency response scenarios identified in this plan. 

• Notification to CUSTOMER Project Manager of any emergency incident. This is a 

Mandatory requirement for all emergencies. Notification of an emergency incident should 

Be made via radio, telephone or messenger to CUSTOMER Operations CCR as soon as 

Practicable upon receiving advice of same. 

• Following initial notification, liaison with CUSTOMER Project Manager during the 

Execution of any emergency response. 

Mobilization of additional resources, third party assistance etc. Liaison with management. 

Site Engineer HSE 

Reporting to the ERT Leader, the Site Engineer HSE and/or his substitute is responsible for 

Ensuring at site that provisions are in place for emergency response, including: 

Muster points. 

Arrangements for conducting head counts. 

• Identification and Mobilization of the Fire Team. 

• Setting up drills and exercises. 

• Procurement of firefighting equipment. 

In the event of any emergency the Site Engineer HSE or a member of the HSE team shall take 

the following actions: 

• Shall attend the site of the incident, assess the situation and issue direction to the 

concerned parties and to the Fire Team. 

• Ensure that messages have been communicated to The Emergency Response Team 

Leader. 

• Evaluate the scale of the incident and decide whether additional resources are required 

to adequately deal with ii. 

• Liaise with site supervision for withdrawing any permits. 

• Liaise with site supervision for the mobilization of any plant and equipment necessary for 

dealing with the emergency. 

• Limit access to the area with barriers or other means to prevent unauthorized access. 

• Co-ordinate the reinstatement measures following stabilization of incident. 

• Prepare a full report. 

Fire Team  

• The fire team will be selected and trained appropriately. 

• The Site Engineer HSE shall appoint a Fire Team Leader (and his substitute) who 

personnel under his control. 

• The fire team leader will have had training and preferably previous experience in 



emergency response actions. 

All the members of the fire team shall report to the Fire Team Leader. 
Appropriate training shall be provided to members of the fire team. 

An electrician or instrument specialist will be included in the fire team. His responsibility 
the electrical isolation of areas as necessary. 

Firefighting appliances shall be maintained in accordance with their specifications, Sufficient 

redundancy shall be incorporated into the facilities to allow for periodic unavailability during 

maintenance. A designated member of the HSE Team shall regularly confirm that fire 

extinguisher and other appliances are recharged and maintained as appropriate. 

General Considerations  

Emergency response drills shall be conducted at least quarterly for each principal area i.e. 

camp and the work site, the observations and debrief notes shall be recorded. The Site 

Engineer HSE shall analyze the findings and identify any remedial actions required. 

The emergency procedure shall be updated from time to time to reflect observations made. 

• Training shall be conducted on regular basis for emergency response teams. 

• The location of emergency facilities e.g., firefighting appliances shall be clearly identified 

on plans displayed at conspicuous locations. 

Raising the alarm and plan activation 

Activate the alarm and notify the ERT Leader. 

Provide the following details: 

• Location of the Incident. 

• Natures of incident e.g., fire, number of injuries, etc. 

If it is a fire, state type - oil, gas, electric or other and state wind direction and strength. 

• Identify yourself giving your name and telephone number or radio channel. 

Alarm and Communication  
Communication is a critical factor in handling an emergency. To control the situation by the 

earliest possible action, any employee must be able to act and raise an emergency alarm. 

The assembly points shall be clearly indicated. 

• On hearing an alarm all personnel shall vacate the workplace. Before leaving, each person 

shall ensure that the area is as safe as possible by switching off all power tools, running 

machines etc. 
All personnel shall muster at the assembly point as per the plan. The designated mernlj; 

of the HSE team shall provide guidance and assistance for mustering at the correct 

assembly point. 

• The subcontractor's HSE team members shall take directions from the Site HSE coordinator. 

Emergency Contacts List  

List of all emergency services contacts will be displayed at site, including contact numbers of 

ERT and key persons (Project Manager GRID EDGE, subcontractor Manager, Site HSE Engineer) 

Incident response  
Emergency situations occurring at the work site have the potential to cause serious injury, 

loss of life and property damage. 
The following is a list of incidents that may be classed as emergencies for the purp 

procedure: 

• Scaffold collapse 

• Fire involving fuels, gases and other materials 

• Medical emergency / Serious Injury 

Failure of lifting equipment 



• Pressure test failure 
• Collapse of an excavation involving personnel 
• Vehicle accidents 

• Collapse of structures/steelwork 

• Snake Bite 

In an emergency, or on hearing the Stop Work Alarm", every supervisor shall ensure the 

following: 

• All work is stopped at once. 

• All equipment is shut down and put in a safe place. 

• All men are evacuated to a pro-determined assembly point in an orderly manner. 

• Arrange best possible interim medical arrangements for patient or injured person during 

transfer to hospital or while attendance by doctor is being arranged. 

• Ensure the presence of ambulance 24 hours with driver. 

• Anti-Snake. Venom must be present at site. 

• A roll call is taken, and every man is accounted for, awaiting further instructions 

• Keep the zone affected by the emergency clear and remove any vehicles that could cause 

a restriction to the emergency team 

Evacuation  

Activate the emergency alarm to evacuate the area safely and ensure that unnecessary 

personnel leave the site by a safe route. Assign someone to advise security to open th 

main gate for emergency vehicles. 
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